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AFFIDAVIT

Name Justine Melissa Munsie

Address Level 12, 60 Carrington Street Sydney NSW 2000

Occupation Soiicitor

Date |4 April 2014

| say on oath:;

1 | am a partner of Addisons and the first plaintiff.

2 | am authorised by Mr Kerry Stokes, the second plaintiff, to swear this affidavit on
his behalf and make this affidavit based on my personal knowledge or else on
information provided to me by Mr Stokes or other employees and officers of the
Seven West Media Group, of which Mr Stokes is Chair, and to whom | will refer in
my affidavit, which information | believe to be true.

3 Mr Stokes, the second plaintiff, is the Chairman of Seven West Media, whose
media assets include the Seven Network which broadcasts news, current affairs
and other programs throughout Australia.

The Website

4 I am informed by Mr Stokes, and believe that he recently became aware of the
existence of an article concerning him and me on a website at the internet address
bttp://kangaroocourtofaustralia.com (“Website”).

5 Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-1 is a print out of the home page of the Website and an article, a link to which
appears on the home page and which refers to Mr Stokes and me (Article).

6 Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-2 is a typed copy of the Article, marked with iine numbers.

7 According to domain name searches which | caused to be performed:

(a) The registrant of the Website is Shane Dowling;

(b) The registrar of the Website is a company known as Wild West Domains, L
which is located in the United States of America.
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8 Annexed to my affidavit and marked “A” is a print out of my search resuits using the
website Geektools Who is Proxy.

9 The Article contains several false allegations about me.

10 The Article also contains several allegations about Mr Stokes which, | am informed
by him and believe, are false.

Search results

11 Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-3 Is a print out of the results of a search using Google which { caused to be
made for the name “Kerry Stokes”. The Article appears on the second page of
those results.

12 Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-4 is a print out of the results of a search using Google which | caused to be
made for the name “Justine Munsie”. The Article is the second item on page 1 of
those results.

13 On the basis of the false statements made in the Article, | caused to be prepared a
letter to Google, Inc, requesting that the website be removed from search resulis for
Mr Stokes or myself.

14 Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-5 is a copy of a report which | caused to be made to Google in relation to the
Article dated 19 March 2014. At the time of swearing my affidavit, | have not
received a response to my letter.

The Twitter Link

15 In the course of preparing this affidavit, | became aware of the tweet made on the
defendant’s twitter page at www.twitter.com/kangaroo_court, together with a link to
the Article, a copy of which is exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit
and marked Confidential JMM-6.

AFP Proceeding

16 The Article refers to recent Federal Court proceedings commenced by Seven West
Media, Pacific Magazines Pty Limited, me and my firm, Addisons, against the
Commissioner of the Australian Federal Police (AFP) and others in relation to
search warrants which had been issued against Seven West Media, Pacific
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17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Magazines and Addisons, together with orders issued under section 246 of the
Proceeds of Crime Act which had been issued personally to me and another Seven
West Media employee (AFP Proceeding).

The search warrants and section 246 orders had been issued as part of an
investigation undertaken by the Australian Federal Police in response to media
speculation that Seven West Media had entered into an agreement with Schapelle
Corby to provide a paid exclusive television interview following her release from a
Bali prison in February 2014.

On 11 February 2014, the AFP had issued a production order under section 202 of
the Proceeds of Crime Act to Seven West Media requiring production of documents
by 4pm on 14 February 2014. The AFP allowed an extension for the production of
documents until the close of business on 17 February 2014.

in the afternoon of 17 February 2014, the AFP applied for the search warrants
addressed to Seven West Media and Addisons and the section 246 order
addressed to me. The following morning, the AFP applied for the search warrant
against Pacific Magazines Pty Limited and the additional section 246 order.

The search warrants included statements that certain persons, including me, were
‘suspects” in an investigation, when it was common ground that none of those
persons, other than Schapelle Corby, was or had ever been a “suspect”.

There were also statements contained in section 246 orders that | and another
Seven West Media employee were “reasonably suspected of having committed a
criminal offence” when it was again accepted that neither of us was or had ever
been so suspected.

Her Honour Justice Jagot delivered judgment in the AFP Proceeding on 26 March
2014,

Annexed to my affidavit and marked B is a copy of Jagot J's judgment in which her
Honour found that the decisions made by the Magistrates to issue the search
warrants and section 246 orders were materially affected by legal error and should
be quashed, with the effect that they are taken not to have existed.

Her Honour held that the AFP did not make it clear to the issuing Magistrates that
neither the deriving of literary proceeds nor the payment or facilitation of a payment
which might give rise to a literary proceeds order, is an offence. This ambiguity,
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together with the making of the erroneous statements referred to in paragraphs x
and Y above in the urgent circumstances in which the applications for search
warrants were made, meant that it was likely that the issuing Magistrates incorrectly
assumed that there was some offence relating to literary proceeds in the Proceeds
of Crime Act which would justify issuing the warrants.

25 Justice Jagot rejected the submission that the erroneous statements were trivial or
inconsequential, holding instead that the errors had materially misled the
Magistrates who issued the warrants,

26 Justice Jagot concluded at [80) that “it is not all difficult to see how and why the
[Magistrates] were led into error by the AFP”.

27 Her Honour further found at [110] that the AFP had materially misled the
Magistrates who issued the warrants by:

(a) stating that the AFP was not satisfied that Seven had complied with the
production order when a consensual regime was in place for continuing
compliance; and

(b) failing to disclose to the Magistrates the evidence of Seven's compliance with
the production order.

28 However, her Honour concluded, also at [110] that she was bound by authority not
to rely on those factors in support of her decision to quash the warrants as she
could not say that there was fraud involived.

29 | am informed by Richard Keegan, a Senior Associate employed by Addisons, and
believe, that he attended the hearing of the AFP Proceeding on 7 March 2014 and
observed a man whom he believed to be Mr Dowling, the defendant, also in
attendance. Mr Keegan has informed me and | believe that he recognised Mr
Dowling from photos on the Website and from the fact that he was wearing a
Kangaroo Court t-shirt, an image of which also appears on the Waebsite.

30 Mr Keegan informed me and | believe that there was some discussion during the
hearing of Seven West Media’s compliance with the production order and, in
particular, whether two draft agreements which Seven West Media had not
produced in response to the production order but later volunteered to the AFP
agents during the execution of the search warrants, were caught by the terms of the

production order.



31 Annexed to my affidavit and marked C is a copy of pages 79-80 of the transcript
from the AFP Proceeding during which the following exchange took place between
counsei for the AFP, Mr Watson SC and her Honour Justice Jagot. Mr Keegan has
informed me and | believe that the exchange concerned a question put by Mr Bruce
McWilliam to the AFP Commissioner at a press conference conducted by the AFP:

MR WATSON: It's a long question. And your Honour can see what it is, is that
material wasn't seized. It was handed over. The warrant was wider than what you
asked for, wider than the production order. There’s nothing wrong with that. So if
you hadn't asked for it, | think if you said a reasonable expectation would have
been given, why not just ask for it; the cost of one email, And then there’s a shot
about the faulty word processor. There's complaint of all the people coming:

Now, | apologise you're in this terrible position of having fo explain. But you
started off saying it’s nof criminal. It was akin to civil. So why not just do
the normal thing under the civil which is to say, “Okay. Well, can you give
us this”. All you got was an unsigned draft that was your extra material,

Could | just pause there and say this is the extra material presumably under the
warrant. | don’t know this. The AFP doesn’t know this because they haven't been
able to access it, yet:

All you got was an unsigned draft that was your extra material. But you
didn’t ask -

and this is about a reference to the production order:
...you didn’t ask for unsigned drafts. You only asked for agreements.

That’s quite right. if your Honour goes right back — | won't take you to it now — but
the production order itself spoke of agreements. And a good lawyer had read it
and said, “Well, that doesn’t capture drafts of agreements”, Well, that's the nature
of the production, and that's the nature of argy bargy in this kind of litigation. It's
also the case that a search warrant which is a completely separate process does
separate things and it acquires information which could be helpful including a draft.

Additional matters referred to in the Article

32 The Article refers to a threatening legal letter said to have been sent by me to

Shane Dowling.
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Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-7 Is a copy of my letter dated 26 May 2011, marked “Not for Publication™ and
sent to Mr Dowling to which | did not receive a response.

Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-8 is a print out from the website of Mr Dowling'’s article about my letter.

Given Mr Dowling’s reaction to my letter which is Confidential Exhibit JMM-2,
neither Mr Stokes nor | have any confidence that a similar letter requesting him to
remove the Article from the website would be treated differently and we are
concerned not to provide a basis for Mr Dowling to repeat the false and defamatory
imputations contained in the Article elsewhere on the website.

The Article and other material posted on the website refers to findings made by his
Honour Justice Sackville in the “C7" proceeding between Seven Network Limited
and others and News Limited and others.

Annexed to my affidavit and marked D is a copy of an extract from his Honour's
judgment concerning the evidence given by Mr Stokes.

The Article also refers to evidence which | gave in my capacity as solicitor for Mr

Ray Hadley in an interlocutory application part of a District Court dispute.

Annexed to my affidavit and marked E is a copy of the judgment of Judge Sorby in
that application which refers to the evidence | gave.

Other statements by the defendant

40

Exhibited to me at the time of swearing this affidavit and marked Confidential
JMM-9 are copies of other statements made by the defendant about the first
plaintiff and/or myself:

(a) Copy of an articie about the defendant, including quotes from an interview
apparently given by the defendant and published on the website

www.altmedia.com.au;
(b) Article on the Website dated 23 May 2011.

(c) Articie on the Website dated 17 March 2013.

Hussha Air——



SWORN at

Signature of deponent /

Name of witness

\”—-\Qk‘ - Q,\n-\h{
Address of witness Level 12, 60 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Capacity of withess Solicitor of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, holding a

current practising certificate under the Legal Profession Act
2004 (NSW)

And as a witness, | certify the following matters concerning the person who made this
affidavit (the deponent);

1 | saw the face of the deponent.
2 I have known the deponant for at least 12 months.

Signature of witness
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Whois: kangaroocourtofaustralia. | Whois >>_]

Checking server [whois.crsnic.net]

Checking server [whois.wildwestdomains.com]

Results:

Domain Name: KANGAROOCOURTOFAUSTRALIA.COM
Reglstry Domain ID: 1630244993_DOMAIN_COM-VRSN
Registrar WHOIS Server: whois.wildwestdomains.com
Registrar URL: http://www.wildwestdomains.com
Update Date: 2013-09-19 05:59:57

Creation Date: 2010-12-14 07:52:12

Registrar Registration Expiration Date: 2014-12-14 07:52:12
Registrar: Wild West Domains, LLC

Registrar IANA ID: 440

Registrar Abuse Contact Emait: abuse@wildwestdomains.com
Registrar Abuse Contact Phone: +1.480-524-2505
Reseller: WordPress.com

Domain Status: clientTransferProhibited

Domain Status: clientUpdateProhibited

Domain Status: clientRenewProhibited

Domain Status: clientDeleteProhibited

Registry Registrant ID:

Registrant Name: Shane Dowling

Registrant Qrganization:

Registrant Street: 5/ 68-70 Curlewis St

Registrant Street: Bondi Beach

Registrant City: Sydney

Registrant State/Province: New South Wales
Registrant Postal Code: 2026

Registrant Country: Australia

Registrant Phone: +41,1238704

Registrant Phone Ext:

Registrant Fax:
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Registrant Fax Ext:
Registrant Email: shanedowling@hotmail.com
Registry Admin ID:

Admin Name: Shane Dowling

Admin Organization:

Admin Street: 5/ 68-70 Curlewis St

Admin Street: Bondi Beach

Admin City: Sydney

Admin State/Province: New South Wales
Admin Postal Code: 2026

Admin Country: Australia

Admin Phone: +41.1238704

Admin Phone Ext:

Admin Fax:

Admin Fax Ext:

Admin Email: shanedowling@hotmail.com
Registry Tech ID:

Tech Name: Shane Dowling

Tech Organization:

Tech Street: 5 / 68-70 Curlewis St

Tech Street: Bondi Beach

Tech City: Sydney

Tech State/Province: New South Wales

Tech Postal Code: 2026

Tech Country: Australia

Tech Phone: +41.1238704

Tech Phone Ext;:

Tech Fax:

Tech Fax Ext:

Tech Email: shanedowling@hotmail.com
Name Server: NS1.WORDPRESS.COM

Name Server: NS2, WORDPRESS.COM
DNSSEC: unsigned

URL of the ICANN WHOIS Data Problem Reporting System: http://wdprs.internic.net/
Last update of WHOIS database: 2014-04-02T01:00:002

The data contained in this Registrar's Whois database,

while believed by the registrar to be reliable, Is provided “as Is"

with no guarantee or warranties regarding its accuracy. This information
is provided for the sole purpose of assisting you in obtaining
information about domain name registration records. Any use of

this data for any other purpose is expressiy forbidden without

the prior written permission of this registrar. By submitting an

inquiry, you agree to these terms of usage and limitations of warranty.
In particular, you agree not to use this data to allow, enable, or
otherwise make possible, dissemination or coliection of this data, in
part or in its entirety, for any purpose, such as the transmission of
unsolicited advertising and solicitations of any kind, Including spam.
You further agree not to use this data to enable high volume, automated
or robotic electronic processes designed to collect or compile this data
for any purpose, inciuding mining this data for your own personal or
commercial purposes.

Please note: the owner of the domain name is specified in the "registrant” section.

In most cases, the Registrar is not the owner of domain names listed in this database.
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Results brought to you by the GeekTools Whois Proxy

Server results may be copyrighted and are used with permission.
Proxy © 1999-2013 CenterGate Research Group LIC

Your host {203.111.13.84) has visited 6 times today.

Copyright Centergate® Research Group, LLC 1998 - 2014
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FEDERAL COURT OF AUSTRALIA
Seven West Media Limited v Commissioner, Anstralian Federal Police [2014]
‘ FCA 263
Citation: Seven West Media Limited v Commiseioner, Australian
Federal Police [2014] FCA 253
Parties: SEVEN WEST MEDIA LIMITED, ADDISONS,

JUSTINE MUNSIE, PACIZIC MAGAZYNES PTY

COMMISSIONER, AUSTRALJAN FEDERAL,
) POLICE, HIS HONOUR MAGISTRA
¢ CURRAN and HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE

CHRISTOPHER O'BRIEN

File number; NSD 201 of 2014; NSD 207 of 2014

Judge: JAGOT J

Date of judgment: 26 March 2014

Catchwords: ADMINISTRATIVE LAW ~ warrants — Proceeds of
Crime Act 2002 (Cth) ss5 225, 246 — i
Decisions (Fudicial Review) Act 1997 Cih)ss5 -

Wednssbury unreasonab) — deciaion so unreasonabje
1o reasonablz person could make - faiture to consider
mnorquﬁon—deoisionbasedoninmmbut
mamﬁalnﬁanmsenmﬁon—docisionbasedonm-

( fnﬂmetomhaewmofrelevmtmd' eration = gearch
This and the follow] ng Pages comprise :ﬁ}im ead 3246 crders isswed by mmstmm Tespeot
the annexure marked * B “1o the affidait of ot “Me4ary procesds” - applicants wrongly a8

J LN, WG YA sworn onf(g mem—ad&wusm.?nglydm?nwm

Eo[(f before mg: Mu«a%ﬁ’mdmas“reuomblysuspemd of committing
y oﬁ'mee—noevidenceapplimtsemsuapecmdofauy

. "> ‘ offence ~ productions order previously issued under

Justice of the 'ﬁé;&:ﬁg&iﬁéfﬁ?&-’ﬁ%ﬂ'é'ﬁii?&'&n”'i’;ii&'& . Procoeds of Crime Act 2002 (Cth) & 202 — decision maker

mateﬁnllynﬁaladastoexwmofcomplianoemsm

Legislation: Administrative Declsions (Fudicial Review) Act 1977 (Cth)
Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld)
Federal Court of Australia Act 1977 (Cth)



Date of hearing;

Date of lest submissions:
Place:

Division:

Category:

Number of paragraphs:

In NSD 201 of 2014;
Counsel for the Applicants:

-2

Federal Court Rules 2011 (Cth)

Judiciary Act 1903 (Cth)
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (Cth)

Firearm Distributors Pty Ltd v Carson (2001) 2 Qd R 26;
[2000] QSC 159

George v Rockett (1990) 170 CLR 104

Hu v Minister for Immigration and Milticultural and
Indigenous Affairs [2004] FCAFC 63

Jilani v Wilhelm (2005) 148 FCR 255; [2005] FCAFC 269
Lego Australia Pty Ltd v Paraggio (1994) 52 FCR 542;
[1994] FCA 1286

Majzoub v Kepreotis [2009] NSWSC 1498

Minister for Aboriginal Affairs v Peko-Wallsend Lid (1986)
162 CLR 24; [1986] HCA 40, at 40
Mmﬁrlmmigrmimwd&huicdﬂwrsv Wu Shan
Liang (1996) 185 CLR 259

Minister for Immigration and Multicultwral Affairs v
Rajamannikam (2002) 210 CLR 222: [2002] HCA 32
Ousiey v The Queen (1997) 192 CLR 69

Rashid v Minister for Immigration and Citizenship [2007)
FCAFC 25

Williams v Keelty (2001) 111 FCR 175; [2001] FCA 1301

7 March 2014

7 March 2014

Sydney

GENERAL DIVISION
Catchwords

119

ASBeﬂSC,GJonea,DFCThomnsdeHeger



Solicitor for the Applicants:
Counsel for the Respondents:

Solicitor for the
Respondents:

In NSD 207 of 2014:
Counse] for the Applicants:

Solicitor for the Applicants:
Counsel for the Respondents:

Solicitor for the
Respondents:

-3-
LG Wright of Atanaskovic Hartnell
GM Watson SC and NJ Owens
J Bird of Ashurst Australia

8 Chrysanthou

V Kalantzis of Kalantzis Lawyers
GM Watson 8C and NJ Owens

J Bird of Ashurst Australia
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IN THE FEDERAL COURT OF AUSTRALIA
NEW SOUTH WALES DISTRICT REGISTRY

GENERAL DIVISION

BETWEEN:

SEVEN WEST MEDIA LIMITED
First Applicant

ADDISONS
Second Applicant

JUSTINE MUNSIE
Third Appliesnt

PACIFIC MAGAZINES PTY LIMITED ACN 097 410 896
Fourth Applicaut

AND: COMMISSIONER, AUSTRALIAN FEDERAL POLICE
First Respondent
HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE GRAEME CURRAN
Second Respondent
HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE CHRISTOFHER O'BRIEN
Third Respondent

JUDGE: JAGOTJ

DATE OF ORDER: 26 MARCH 2014

WHERE MADE: SYDNEY

THE COURT ORDERS THAT:

1. The following search warrents issued under s 225 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002

(Cth) (the search warrants) be quashed as invalid end of no effect:

®

(b

(©

Limited;

(New Ides), Media City”;

each issued on 17 February 2014; and

NSD 201 of 2014

CMO 14/035 in relation to the premises of Seven West Media
CMO 14/037 in relation to the premises of “Pacific Magazines

CMO 14/039 in relation to the premises of Addisons Lawyers;
(@ CMO 14/043 in relation to the premises of Justine Munsie,



-2,

(e)  CMO 14/045 in relation 1o the premises identified as “Media
City”, issued on 18 February 2014,
The following orders issued under 8246 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (Cth)
(thesMﬁnrdm)bequashedasinvaﬁdandofmeffcﬂ:
(®  CMO 14/036 to “Seven West Media Ltd (Seven Network)™:
(b) CMO 14/038 1o ‘B4 or or any other employes, Pacific
Magazines (New Idea)”;
{£) CMO 14!040to“JusﬁneMunsieoranyotheremployee.
Addisons Lawyers”; and
(@  CMO 14/044 to Justine Munsie or any other resident, 444,

hﬁleeventofanqunwtbyamn-pwmmwdoc&mmﬁlndinthe
proeeedmgs,aupmsofdomﬁiedinthepmcwdings(mdudingplmdings,
afﬁdavitsandmbmissions)whichidmﬁfyihenmuoﬁ

(a) themtumlpmonsidenﬁﬁedasmmpectsincondiﬁontwoof

the search warrants; or

() thenatlnipetsonsﬂ:eredpimtofumm,
oﬂmﬂmnthanameslusﬁneMmsie,VasiﬁosKalantzis,SehapelleCorbyand
MereeduCorhy,notbedisclosedothm-thnntotheparﬁasandthd:legnl
Tepresentatives,
Thepmceedingsbeﬁmdforﬁirﬂmheaﬁnginmspectnfwmequmﬁaloﬁers,and
ordemforcosts.onadatetobenbminmdhmﬂmﬁonwiﬂnhepuﬁes,suchdm
mhcvacatedifﬂaepuﬁésﬂlecmsemmﬁalmdmozdmbymwbefmhmd.

Note: Entry of orders is dealt with in Rule 39.32 of the Federal Court Rules 2011,

/6.
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IN THE FEDERAL COURT OF AUSTRALIA
NEW SOUTH WALRS DISTRICT REGISTRY
GENERAL DIVISION NSD 207 of 2014

BETWEEN: MERCEDES PEARL ESMA CORBY

First Applicant

VASILIOS KALANTZIS
Second Applicant

COMMISSIONER, AUSTRALIAN FEDERAL POLICE
First Respondent

HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE GRAEME CURRAN
Second Respondent

HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE CHRISTOPHER O'BRIEN
Third Respondent

JUDGE: JAGOT
DATE OF ORDER: 26 MARCH 2014
WHERE MADE: SYDNEY

THE COURT ORDERS THAT:

L

The following search werrants isszed under s 225 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002
(Cth) (the search warrants) be guashed as invalid and of no effect:

() CMO 14/041 in relation to the premises of Kalantzis Lawyers,
Thefollo“ﬁngordmismmdmdusﬁﬁofﬂmhamdsof&imdﬂ%&(cm)
{the 5 246 orders) be quashed as invalid and of po effect:

(e) CMO 14/042 to Kalant2is Lawyers,
Inﬂwcvmtofanquuutbyanon—pmytomesstodmmﬁledhthz

pmmdings,aﬂpmofdocumﬁledinﬂnmceedings(mdudhgpludings,
effidavits and submissions) which identify the names of
(a)  the natural persons identified as suspects in condition two of
the search warrants; or
(b)  the natursl persons the recipicat of a s 246 order,



-4

other than the names Justine Munsie, Vasilios Kalantzis, Schapelle Carby and
MereedmCorby.notbedisulosedothctthanmthepmﬁesandtheirIegnl
trepresentatives.

4, Iheproceedingsbeﬁswdforﬁuﬂmheaﬂnginrwpwtofcomequenﬁﬂoﬁers,md
ordemfmcosts,madmm-bemminatedinmultaﬁonwiﬂmthepnﬁes,mm
tobevacatediftthnrﬁesﬁlemequwﬁalmdcosﬂmﬂembycommtbeﬂmhmd.

Note: Entry of orders is dealt with in Rule 39,32 of the Federal Court Rules 2011.
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IN THE FEDERAL COURT OF AUSTRALIA
NEW SOUTH WALES DISTRICT REGISTRY
GENERAL DIVISION NSD 201 of 2014;

BETWEEN:

AND:

BETWEEN:

JUDGE:
DATE:
PLACE

NSD 207 of 2014

SEVEN WEST MEDIA LIMITED
First Applicant

ADDISONS
Second Appiicant
JUSTINE MUNSIE
Third Applicant

PACIFIC MAGAZINES PTY LIMITED ACN 087 410 896
Fourth Applicant

COMMISSIONER, AUSTRALIAN FEDERAL POLICE
Kirst Respondent

HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE GRAEME CURRAN
Second Respondent

HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE CHRISTOPHER O'BRIEN
Third Respondent

NSD 201 of 2014;
NSD 207 of 2014
MERCEDES PEARL ¥SMA CORBY
Firat Applicant
VASILIOS KALANTZIS
Second Applicant

COMMISSIONER, AUSTRALIAN FEDERAL POLICE
First Respondeat

HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE GRAEME CURRAN

Second Respendent

HIS HONOUR MAGISTRATE CHRISTOPHER O'BRIEN
Third Respondent

JAGOTJ

26 MARCY 2014

SYDNEY
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REASONS FOR JUDGMENT

1 THE PROCEEDINGS

These two proceedings involve chalienges 1o the validity of search warrants and so-
called 8 246 orders issued under the Procesds of Crime Act 2002 (Cth) (the PoC Act).

On 17 February 2014 the second respondent, a magistrate, issued five search werrants
in respect of premises occupied by Seven West Media Limited (Seven West), Pacific
Magazines Pty Limited (Pacific Magazines), Addisons Lawyers, Justine Munsie, a partuer at
Addisons Lawyers, and Kalantzis Lawyers. At the same time the sccond respondent issued
ﬁves%mdmbmﬁdeinfomaﬂmmdamimmSmem“[anmmﬁvidnﬂ],
or eny other employee Pacific Magazines (New Idea)”, “Iustine Munsie or sny other
employee, Addisons Lawyers”, “Justine Munsie or any other resident” at Ms Munsie’s
residential address, and “Kalantzis Lawyers”. On 18 Fehruary 2014 the third respondent, a
magistrate, issued a search wamant in respect of premises identified as “Media City” and
which are occupied by Seven West's wholly owned subsidiaries, including Pecific
Magazines.

The applicants are persons aggrieved by the issue of the search warrmnts being, in
proceeding NSD 201 of 2014, Seven West , Addisons Lawyers, Ms Munsie and Pacific
Megazings and, in the seoond proceeding NSD 207 of 2014, Mercedes Corby and her lawyer
Vasilios Kalantzis, the principal of Kalentzis Lewyers. The epplicants comend thet the
search warrants end s 246 orders are invalid on numerous grounds most of which relate, one
way or enother, to the propositions that the 5246 orders idemtified the recipients as
“reasonably suspected of having committed the offence stated in the warrant” when, in fect,
nene of them were or at any time hed been suspected of baving committed en offence, and
that the search warrants idenitied individuaiz who were the appiicanis or their empioyees or
pariners as being “suspects...that are the subject of the investigation™ when, in fact, noxe of
them were, or at any time had been, suspected of having committsd an offence or suspects the
subject of an investigation.

In order to understand the applicants’ contentions, and the response of the
Commissioner, Australian Federal Police (the AFP) that the acknowledged errors in each of
the s 246 orders do not invalidate those orders or the seaxch warrants, it is necessary to
explain the scheme of the PoC Act and the factusl circumstances in which the search
warrants end s 246 orders were issued.
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None of the primary facts are in dispute.

The second and third respondents, the magistrates who issued the search warmants and
orders, entered submitting appearances,

2. THE POC ACT
IhePoCAﬁmbﬁshesamhmcmdepivepmonsofthopmoeedsofmime
including “literary proceeds derived from the commercial exploitation of [the persen’s]
notoriety from having committed offences”; s 5(b). By 5 153(2) of the PoC Act “commercisl
am!dlaﬁm"mnybebymymeminﬂudingmushingmymmﬁdinWﬁWmordmﬂic
form.mynaeofmedinfmmwhichvimﬂimages,wmdsorsomdsmbepmduned,ormy
live entertainment, representation or interview. Pursusnt to s 152, a court may make,
amongnothumﬂm,aﬁmprmeedsmderrequhingapmmpaymamommm
Commonmalﬁifsaﬁsﬁedﬂ:aiﬂwpmmhummmiﬂedmhdicmbhoﬁmm(slsz(l))m
foreign indictable offence (g 152(2)) and has derived literary proceeds in relation to the
offence. !mpormnﬂy,deﬁvingﬁmypmmismﬂtsdfmo&me.nmispayingmy
person money which might enable a literary proceeds order to be made, The scheme is a civil

snhememabﬁngremvuyofﬁtamymmdsifmemdiﬁmsforthamnﬁngofmmﬂerm
satisfied.

Chnperofﬂ:ePoCActemblashfmnaﬁonnndwidenoetobegﬂhmdforthe
pmposuofthcAaimludingdetmﬂningwhethuanappﬂcaﬁonﬁ:raﬁmmypmmds
order should be made, Amongst other things, £202 ensbles & magistrate to make a
ptodw&moxdureqaﬁﬁngmdueﬁonafpmpaty-meh’ngdocummtsmmmnhoﬁud

(s 20205)):

(a) adommentmlevmttoidanﬁfying.hcwﬁngorqumﬁfyhgﬂnpmputyof
any person:

@ wito has been copvioted of] charged with, or whom
its is proposed to charge with, en indictable offence;
or

(i) whom there are reasonable grounds to suspect of
heving committed a serious offence;



(e} adocumentrelevmttoidm&tym‘ itying, locating or quantifying Litorary proceeds
hrdaﬁmmmindieubhoﬁeawwaﬁrdgnhdiehbhoﬁemaofwhicha
pmhmbmmvmawﬁd:apmhmwwof
having commitiad;

magismwhomakesthemduisnﬁsﬁadthﬂmeadiuﬁmuhomuwﬁeibeingu
Ieast!daysaﬂsrﬂtedayonwhichﬂnpmducﬁmcrduismde.

i0 Bysm.mmhmanmmaybeiasued. Section 225 provides that:

n Amagimmyiamavmnmnmm‘mmifﬂmmmis
saﬁsﬂedbyinfonmﬁononomhﬁmm_mmblegroundsfm
suspecting that there is at the i ,orvdﬂbewlthinﬂmnﬂtﬂhm
*mhmdpmputyor‘evidmﬁa!miul.

(2) M an epplication fora *muhwmismdumdermimnﬂappbdng
for warrants by telephone or other electronic means), this section epplies as if
subsecﬁou(l)ret‘emdmﬂhomsmheﬂnn‘nh !

3) Thc*uuuhvmautcmonlybeimwdonappﬂmﬁonbyan‘wthoﬁnad
oﬁ!cwofm'enfommmtmy.
11 EvidenﬁﬂmateﬁﬂisdeﬁnedinﬂxeDicﬁonnymﬂwPoCAnt(sSSSJinMﬁums:
“aﬁduﬁtlmr’munsevidemmllﬁngm:

(2) mhmspwtofwhiohwﬁmhnshemorwuldbeuhmmdu
this Act; or

(b) *bemefits derived from the commission of an *indiciable offence, a
*Mgnindimb!eo&neeorm*indimblenﬂ‘mmof

12 TheAFPisanenfo:ce:nmtagencyun&rﬂmPoCActandﬂmoﬁcmofﬂmm

13 Swﬁmﬂ?ﬂ)ofﬁehcmmmmmmdmwm. Amongst
oﬂwrthings,ﬁesewchmammmtsmwthe“menumoﬂhepmminmpmofwhinh
action has been or could be taken under this Act” {s 227(1)(=)), “the nature of that action”
(3227(1)(13)),'Thekindsof*uinmdpmpmym%viwmmdalﬂmistobemhedfor

VAR
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mdeﬂhemn”(sﬂ?(l}d)),“ﬂm&ewmmmﬂhoﬁmﬁemizmofothuﬂﬁngsﬁund
a:mepmnﬁsesmthaemmofﬂwmhmatme*mcnﬁngoﬁmora’mmmisﬁng
believenonreasonablegrmmdaw be... evidential materis! in relation to property to which
the warrant relates, ,, ifheorshebelievesnnmonablegmmdsthntsﬁmaofthethingsis
mmmmwmmg!mwdmtwmorﬂﬁrminmm&ngm
offence™ (sﬂ?{l)(h)),and‘\whnﬂ:ertﬁewmman‘mﬂinmmora *frigk
mdxofapmmwhoisatmneuthemiseswhmﬂnwmismmdifﬁm
exemﬁngofﬁwmapemmuﬁaﬁngmablympwmthatihepmonhasmyw
property or evidential material in his or her possession” (s 227(1}(7).

Secﬁonzzsﬂ)mﬁdwthuamchmmanomﬁemewﬁngoﬁwmdpm
asﬂsﬁngmmmemisequormdnkeﬁnmnumdmples,umhformdseim
minmdmoputymwidenﬁﬂmmﬁdoftheﬁndsspeciﬁedinﬂwmmmmhewmmt
allows, mconductmordﬁ:myorﬁiskahofapersonatormtheprmisesifthe
exemﬁngoﬂicumpemmmisﬂngsuspeusonmablegmmdsthatﬂwmonhnmy
ummdmpertyorevidenﬁalmateﬁalinhiswherpomsion.

By 5238, “[ﬂnexewﬁnga*mchwmmm*exwuﬁngoﬁmmyobtainmmh
usishnoemdusemchfomeagamtmsudﬂﬁngamismmymdmmameinthe
circumstances™®,

withm:tdamagingit,andnlsotoeopythedm
Section 246 is in these terms:

(1) An'mmlﬁngufﬁwmynpplyﬁoemgismforlnudermquiringa
Mﬁedpﬂmmmvidewinﬁmmﬂmwmismthuismmblew
neeem.rytolﬂowmoﬁewmdoomwmmofﬁcfoﬂwing:

(a) m*dmhddhmmufbkﬁmawmpmﬁatkmﬂw
*premises;

) aopyﬂ:ednhma*datamdwice;

© convert the data into documantary form.

{2 memagimaumymalmmmifnﬁsﬁodm
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(a) &mmmonnblcgmmﬂufmsmpacﬁngthu‘ evidential materip]
ismibhﬁmﬁemmr;md

(b)  the specifisd person is;

()] msonnh!ysumdafmwing,urhaﬁngmduhisor
hercmk‘laimdp@opextymevidmﬁdmmrial;m

(i) the owner or lessoe of the compter; or
(iii) memployeeof&eommhmofﬂumum;md
{a) ﬂzelpeeiﬁedmonhmhmwledgaoﬁ

) themmpmoi'ampmnﬂwmkofwhichtheomnu
Torms & part; or

(ii) Icasures applied to protect “data held in or 2coossible from the
computer,

() A person is guilty of an offence if tite person fils to comply with the order,
Penulty: lmpﬁmentfmﬁmonthsm%pemltyemits, or both,

Under s 266;
A person is guilty of en offence if:

(® ﬂ:cpmmmﬂmsaﬂm(whaﬂmomlly.adowmmahmyoﬂm
way); and

(b) the statement:
()] is false or misleading; or
(i :;imanymmermthingwiﬂ;omwhiuhﬂnmmismismm

{c) memwmentismndain.orinwmecﬁmwiﬂ;mnpplioaﬁmfon*mmh
warrant,

Penalq:hnmimmnmtfmzymorl%pmﬂqlmits.orboﬂa.

Section 338&eﬁnea1hgtem“mspeet“butonlyinrdaﬁontoams&nﬁﬁngmﬂer.
wnﬁmﬁmordezmdanms&nplainedwealﬂlorder.

3, THE FACTS

On 11 Febnmryzouamagimissuedapm&mﬁonorderwsemWeetmder
5202 of the PoC Act. 'Ihemderrequiredpmducﬁonofdocumemsineigbtclmbyu
February 2014, each of the classes relating to arrangements between Seven West and/or jts

LN



21

~11-

associated companies for the publication of the story of Schapelle Corby. The arder required
the documents to be produced to Jeffrey Kokles, an authorised officer within the meaning of
the PoC Act and an officer of the AFP.

On 14 February 2014, before the expiry of the 3 dey pericd later that day, Ms Munsie
of Addisons Lawyers forwarded an email to Mr Kokles which referred to an earlier telephone
call and confirmed that Ms Munsie acted for Seven West and would coordinate the respoznse
to the production order. In her email Ms Munsie requested clarification of certsin issves
inchuding the fact that the order was not limited &s to time and production of documents
brought into existence before 1 January 2014 could not be achieved within the short time
allowed, the wording of the production order which, it was said, extended to payments to
staff of Seven West, and the terms of class 8 of that arder. Mr Kokles replied shortly
thereafter also by amail. In the reply it wes said thet:

The AFP agrees that Seven West Modia Ltd can provide requested documents in two
(2) tranches as follows:

* Specified documents from the past 2 years 1o be provided by 4.00 pm this
date as stated in the order; and

* All cther documants to be provided by 25 Febroary 2014 (14 days from
the order date).

Mr Kokles® response also clarified the AFP's position in answer to the other questions
Ms Muzsie had asked,

Later on 14 Febroary 2014, Ms Munsie personally delivered documents in answer to
the production order to Mr Kokles. Those documents included a letter dated 24 Jenuary 2014
from New Idea to Mercedes Corby, Schapelle Corby’s sister, confirming the conditicns of an
agreement between Mercedes Corby and Pacific Magazines, the publisher of New ldea, for
a exclusive interview with Mercedes Carby. Under the heading “Fee” the letter stated:

Pecific will...pay to you or your nominee a total fee of $25,000...within 14 days
after the iasue of New Iidea contatning the articls goes off sale.

The documents produced also included a letter daied 7 February 2014 from Seven
Network (Operations) Limited (Seven Network) to Mercedes Corby converning exchumive
arangements with “Sunday Night”, a proposed broadcast involving &n interview between
Mercedes Corby and Mike Willesse. The letter recarded Mercades Corby’s agreement to be
involved in the exclusive interview end to “use [her] best endsavours to procure the
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agreement of fher] sister, Schapelle, also to be similarly involved in an exclusive interview
with Mike Willesee as part of the Sunday Night feature™. The letter said that Seven Network
agreed to meet the obligations as ouilined in an attachment. The attachment included certein
arrangements said to be “following release”, meaning following the release of Schapelle
Corby from prison in Bali on parole. The arrangements included, for the duration of a
defined exclusivity period, Scven Network paying for Mercedes Corby and her family
including Schapelle to be located in a secure vills, providing to the family a local driver and
providing security for the Corby family, as well as providing Mercedes Corby with a
Samsung smartphone which she could retain.

Aeoozdingtoasubsequcntleua,whenshepmdmdthedocmemsMstde
informed Mr Kokles thet: (i) all documents relating to Seven West’s television programs had
been produced, (ii) the 24 January 2014 letter agreement between New Iden and Mercedes
Corby was an unsigned copy but Seven West was continuing to search for docurments
associated with that agreement including in reletion to the fee and would produce those
further documents as soon as possible, (iif) clarification was still required as to whether
production of documents, predating 1 January 2014, between Seven West and third parties
not related to the Corby family was within the terms of the production order, and (iv) Seven
West was aware of arrangements entered into by its magezine division for the purchase of
photographs relating to the Corby family which it bad not yet been able to Yocate and in
respect of which Seven West’s request for clarification was repeated.

Shartly before midday on 17 February 2014, the AFP served a letter on Ms Munsie at
her home address. The letter stated that the AFP bad reviewed the documents produced by
Seven West in response to the production order and that, in the AFP’s view, it was clear that
Seven West had not complied with the order. The letter said that, by way of example, the
documents provided did not identify how payment of the fee of $25,000 to Mercedes Corby
“i5 or was to be made” and that the letter dated 7 February 2014 relating to the Mercedes
Corby exclusive arrangements made “no mention of funds that are to be paid despite a
signed contract”. The letter concluded:

W invite Seven to review its position and provide all the documents requested in the

Order in their entirety for the past two years, by oo Iader then the close of business
today.

In the event that Seven does not fully commply with the Order as required the AFP will
have no option but to consider further action be taken under the Act.
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Just before 4.00 pm on the same day, 17 February 2014, the AFP approached the
second respondent, 8 magistrate, to request the issue of the search wamrants and s 246 orders
issued on that day. In support of the applications the AFP provided the second respondent
with en affidavit from Mr Kokles which was sworn before the magistrate as witness to the
affidavit and copies of the proposed 5246 orders end search warrants as issued on

17 February 2014.

Mr Kokles® 17 February 2014 affidavit identified that he was an suthorised officer of
the AFP, being an enforcement agency under the PoC Act, and the applicant for a search
warrant under s 225 of the Act in relation to premises including the premises of Seven West,
Pacific Magazines, Addisons Lawyers, Kalantzis Lawyers, Mr Kalantzis, Ms Munsie and

In paragraph 5, the affidavit records that, by reason of the matiers set out in the
effidavil, “a magistrate may properly be satisfied thet there are reasonsble grounds for
suspecting that there are at the premises apecified above evidential material within the
meaning of the [PoC Act), being evidence relating to: litexary proceeds which satisfies the
following three conditions.”

The three conditions ars then sef out.

The first condition identifies “Things which are: Originals or copies of any one or
more of the following, inchuding any of them which are stored on a computer... or any other
type of storage medium or storage device™. Several categories of document renging from
“contracts™ to “currency™ are then listed.

The second condition is-that the “things” “relate to anyone or more of the following”,
after which some 33 fiems appear including the names of individuals (including Schapelle
Corby, Mercedes Corby, Ms Munsie, Mr Kalantzis and a number of other people whose
names need not be repeated), entities (including Pacific Magazines, New Idea, Seven West,
Seven Network and Channel Seven), emd things (including “CORBY Agreement” and
“Mercedes CORBY Exclusive Agreement”).

The third condition states that the “things” are things:
in relation to which these are reasonable grounds for suspecting that they relate to:

Evidence as to Schapelle Leigh CORBY (CORBY) born 10 July 1977 who on
27 May 2005 in Denpasar, Indonesia was convicted of an offence, being & foreign

2% |
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indictable offence within the meaning of the Proceads of Crime Act 2002, deriving
Literary Proceeds as defined under section 153, Procseds of Crime Act 2602,

Paragraph 6 of the affidavit, under the heading “The nature of the property in respect
of which action has been or could be taken under the Procesds of Crime Act 2002 and the
rature of that action is set out below™, siates

On 27 May 2005, in Denpeser, Indonagia, CORBY was convicled of an offence,

being a foreign indictable offence within the meaning of the Proceads of Crine Act

2002, deriving Literary Proceeds 25 defined wnder section 153, Procseds of Crime
Act 2002,

Proceeds of Crime action could be taken to apply for a Literary Procesds arder under
section 152 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 in respect of sl] Literary Procesds, as
defined under section 153 Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, derived by CORBY in
respect to any and all agreements anterad info with Seven West Media Limited and
tolated medin representative entities by CORBY or on her bekalf, ...

Paragraph 7 of the affidavit states that records obtained by the AFP reveal that
Schapelle Corby was convicted in Indonesia of an offence which Mr Kokles suspected
would, if carried out in Australis, mmount to an indictable offence against the laws of
Austreliz and that Schapelle Corby was granted parole in Bali on 10 February 2014. Sources
identified as “open source enquiries”, in effect newspaper articles and media statements, had
reported that Channel Seven had secured an interview with Schapelle Corby for amounts of
up to $3 million. Under the heading “Actions taken by AFP*, the following paragraphs
appesr:

7(i) On 11 Pebruary 2014, the AFP applied for and were granted a Proceeds of

Crime Act 2002 ssction 202 Production Order (CMO14/023) (the onder) 1o be servad

on Seven West Media Lid, by New Soeth Wales Magisteate GROGIN. The order

stipulated that documents in respect to the ordar were 1o be provided oo the AFP by

4.00pm on Friday 14 February 2014. Seven Weat Medin Lid is ¢he corporate entity
for Seven Network:

7() About 5.12pm cn Tuesday 11 February, the AFP ettended the offices of Seven
West Medis Ltd and served the order on Seven West Media Ltd located =t...

7(k) About 3.50pm on 14 February 2014, at..., representative of Seven West Medic
Lid, Justine MUNSIE (MUNSIE) of Addisons Lawyers, handed the AFP several
documents in response to the order.

Paragraph 7(s) of the affidavit is in these terms:

Beiween 14 February and 17 February 2014, the ARP have reviewed documents
provided by Seven West Media Lt in response to the order dated 11 February 2014,
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Upon reviewing the documents the AFP aro not satisfied that Seven Network have
complied with the order for example:

s A copy of a letter from New Idea to Marcedes CORBY dated 24 Janvary
2014 has refierence to an amount of 325,000 (“the Fes™). It ig not
articulated in the limited dooumentation provided to the AFP as to how
that payment is ot wes to be made;

* In relstion to the “Mercedes Corby Exclusive Agreement” there is no
mention of furds to be paid despite a signed contract.

In paragraph 8 of the affidavit, Mr Kokles requested that the search warant authorise
the conduct of an ordinary search or a frisk search of & person at or nesr the premises if the
exccuting officer or person assisting suspects on reasonable grounds that the person hes any
tainted property or evidential meterial in his or her possession.

Paragraph 9 of the affidavit records the following, under the heading “Legal
Professional Privilege:

Legal premises

It is my intention that, if practicable, before the premises are searched the executing
officer will give the ocoupier of the premises, or a person who apparently represents
the occupier, 2 copy of the document entitled “General Guidelines Batween the
Augiralian Federal Police end the Law Council of Australin as the Exeoution of
Search Warrants on Lawyers” Premiszs, Law Socleties snd the Like Institations fn
Ciroumgtances Where a Claim of Legal Profeasional Privilage is Made” (a copy of
which is attached) and that, as fisr as possible, the scarch will be conducted in
aocordance with the procedures set out in that document in the event that legal
profissional privilege is claimed in respect of any document covered by the warrent.

Other premises

it is my intention that, if practicable, before the premises ars searched the executing
oificer will give the ccoupier of the premises, or a person who apparently represents
the occupier, a ocpy of the documenmt emtitled “Claims for Legal Professional
Priviloge: Promises oitier than thoss of a Lawyer, Law Society or Like Institution” (s
copy of which is attached) and that, as far as possibls, the search will be conducted n
scoordance with the procedures set cut in that document in the event that logal
professional privilege is claimed in respect of any document covered by the warrant.

The affidavit concludes with the statement that Mr Kokles applies for a search
warrant authorising him “with such assistance by such force as is necessary and reasonabie”
to enter the premises mentioned in the affidavit, search for and record fingerprints and take
samples of things found at the premises, search for the kind of tainted property or evidential
muaterial specified in the warrant and seizz things of that kind, seize other things on the basis
of & belief on reasonable grounds that seizure is necessary to present the concealment, loss or

9.



des&unﬁonoruseofthoseﬂaingsin eommiﬂingmindicmbleoffenoe,tomnductmcordﬂing
orﬁskmhofpmuwﬁﬁedmi%applypmﬁsimofmmmmﬁonm

of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002”,
40 AtB.SSpmon17Febnmy2014meseccmdmpondentissuedihesearchwmmnts
and s 246 orders a5 identified in the table below:
File number Order type Premises/Addresscs
"CMO 14/035 3225 Wagrent Seven West Media
Limited
CMO 14/036 5 246 Order “Soven West Media
Ltd (Seven Network)”
CMO 147037 £ 225 Warrant “Pacific Magazines
(New Ides), Media
City, [
CMO 14/038 & 246 Order “[#4F] or any other
employee, Pacific
Magazines (New
ldea)”
"CMO 14/039 5225 Warcant Addisons Lawyers[]
"CMO 147040 § 246 Ordar Justine Munsio or any
other employse,
Addisons Lawyers
CMO 14/041 3225 Warant Kalantzis Lawyers
CMO 14/042 8 246 Order Kalapteis Lawyers
"CMO 147043 8325 Warrant [address of
Mg Munsia's
premiges)
CMO 14/044 8 246 Order “Juatine Mnasie or any
other rasident, [###]"
41 Apartﬁmnﬁediﬁ&mtﬁlenumbarsandpmmisesmwhichﬂmmhwmm

related, the search warrants wers in identical terms, The search warrants wers addressed to
Mr Kokles, Thewmmureomdedthcseeondrespondmt's satisfuction in respect of each of
the premises as follows:
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WHEREAS [ am satisfied by information on oath provided to me by an euthorised
officer of an enforcement agency that there are reasonable grounds for suspecting
that there is et the following premises:
[Premises]
[}

The search warrants glso set out each of the three conditions as referred to in the
affidavit of Mir Kokles except (impostantiy, for the applicants’ case) thet the second condition
appearsd in these terms:

Second condition: And which relate to any one or more of the following:
List suspects, entities or sther matters that are the subject of the investigation.

Following this statement the same 33 names of people, entitics and things appeared as
get out in the affidavit.

Apart from the different file numbers and people to whom the s 246 orders related,
those orders were also in identical terms. Each order recorded that an application had been
made by Mr Kokles, an authorised officer of an enforcement agency within the meaning of
the PoC Act, in relation o a search warrant issued under s 225 of that Act in respect of the
nominated premises for an order under s 246 of the Act. The s 246 orders also each recorded
the following:

And whereas |am satisfied that:

¢ there are reasonsahie grounds for suspecting that evidentinl material is
beld in, or is accessible from, & computer or data storage devices at those
premises;

e you are reasonably spspected of baving committed the offence stated in
the relevant warrant and a person who uses or has vsed the computer or
device; and

e you have relevant knowledge of the computer or device or a computer
network of which the computer or device forms & part and measures
applied to protect date keld in, or accsssibie from, the computer or
device.

And whereas 1 am satisfied that i is reasonabie and necessary for the comstable
specified above to bave the information or. assistance set out below to:

o acoess data held in, or accessible from, & computer or data storage device
on the warrant prernises;

® copy data held in, or accessible form, & computer or data storage device
on the warrant premises; and
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bamiuedbmbeforeﬂmyhadbemmedandbmethedmofbusinmﬂmday,
MaMmsiefomxdedalmbyemaﬂmthzminmspmm’ﬂmAFP'senrlierIﬁurof
theamedaywhichinvitedsvwenWesttomiewitsposiﬁmandprovideallﬂmdocumts
requesmdinﬂlemdudionnrderunders2ﬂ2 ofﬂ:ePoCActbynolntertbanﬂmcloseof
business 17 Rebruary 2014,

Thelemerﬁ'omMlemieofl7Febmm72014m.ﬂ1medﬂmSevenWesthndnm
yﬂpmduceddldomnentsinmponsemthcmoducﬁonordu“bmhuukenmdis
GmﬂndngmmkemmmnuemmmywiﬁﬁeMmsdmeW. This letter also
clarified that, in response to AFP's query regarding the letter of 7 Febroary 2014 relating to
the“MﬂwdesCorbyEmlusivﬂyAgreemmt",ﬂmewue‘hoﬁmdsmbepﬁdexoeptﬁw
mmmwfaredmintheagnemam”mdﬂmgaemdingly,mm&mmmhndbem
produced. ’l'heletwreomludedwithﬂmstmm

Lateron17Febmary20]4,mMmsieforwmﬂedmthermaﬂwﬂwAFPwhich
amhed,bywayofﬁmhzrpmducﬁmmmmmthnpmdmﬁmmdamduam&the
PoCActmmiﬂanceadviaesmhﬁngtothengrmmbamenNewIdeamde
Corby. Ththmemsahowamoordofmslectrmicﬁmds&amfubySomNm&to
Mmedestbyinthesumofms,Ooo,asweﬂasoﬂurmoordaofhimﬁedtuﬁemh
mambers of the Corby family.

On 18 Febmary2014anoth=rauﬂmﬁsedoﬁcerofﬂ1eAFPapprmchedadiﬁemnt
magistrate, the third respondent, with an affidavit seeking the issue of & search warrant in
relaﬁnntotheprm:imoompiedbyMediaCity. Thet officer, Victor Phum, swore his
afﬁdavﬁbefomtbcmgishﬂeuwimess,theaﬁdaﬁtbeingmmbmﬁdiyﬂwmm
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as that sworn on the previous day by Mr Kokles. In perticular the affidavit contained the
same version of paragmph 7 including paragraph 7(s) referred to above forming part of
Mr Kokles® affidavit. The affidavit also contained new paragmaphs 7(f) and (u) to the effect
that search warrants had been executed at premises of Seven Network and Seven West on
18 February 2014 and the AFP had been informed that one of the individuals named in the
seoond condition of the search warant was located at different premises known as
Media City. No mention was made of the further correspondence from Ms Munsie late on
17 February 2014,

‘The third respondent issued a search warrant to Mr Phun in respect of the premiges
occupied by Media City. The conditions of this search warrant are in the same terms as the
other search warrsnts referred to above incleding the second condition which sels out the
name of 33 people, entities and things under the heading “List suspects, entities or other
matiers that are the subject of the investigation”. However, this search warrent also contained
deletions, which I infer to be by the third respondent, so that the authorisations to search for
and record finger prints and teke samples, as well as to conduct ordinary and frisk searches at
or near the premises, have been struck through.

On 18 Pebruary 2014, the AFP served the s 246 order addressed to Addisons Lawyers
on Ms Munszie at the premises of Addisons Lawyers. The AFP also executed the scarch
warranis issued by the second respondent on 17 February 2014 in so far as they related to the
premises of Seven West, Pacific Magezines, and Addisons Lawysrs. The AFP did not
execute the search warrant in respect of Ms Munsie’s home and did not serve the 5 246 orders
addressed to Seven West, Pacific Magazines or the residents of Ms Munsie’s home. Also on
18 February 2014, the AFP exccuted the search warrant issued that day by the third
respondent in respect of the Media City premises.

On 21 February 2014, in response to a letter from the solicitors for Addisons Lawyers
and Ms Munsie, the AFP confirmed in writing that the statement in the 8 246 order stating
that the magistrate was satisfied that “you are reasonably suspected of having committed the
offence stated in the relevant warrant” was “incorrect”, “shonid not bave been made”, was a
“regretinble error” and an “innocent word-processing error”. Further, as the AFP had “made
clear” to Ms Munsie on 18 February 2014, “she was not suspected of auy offence™ and that
“thig was and has always remained the position”. In a press conference held on 22 February
2014 the AFP confirmed that:
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When owr members put the search dooumenty togsther and the accompanying order
under 8 246, they used & previous pro-forme from snother matter, that in there
referved to a criminal offence. Then they chenged some of the detnils, what they
fafled to do, was omit that partienler paregraph. That's all it wes. It did say in there it
referred o a criminal oifence in the warrant. Of courss when you go @ the wanent
there is no criminal offence. Having seid thet though & is & mistake md it's a mistake
the AFP regrets, and we sincerely apologise for any inconvenience, particularly to the
individusls who may have thought as a result of their neme being at the top as the
mupierofﬁlepummﬂnﬂwehndmywaym&mdﬂutﬂwymmiﬂedaﬂy
crimipai activity.

33 mhmmmwwammmaﬁmﬁmmmmf

ﬂmsmkmﬂthpm&MMWMmWhmﬁrmm

hadvbemmmdmdmmmlc;mmhadmbma;_._,f" 2, 0B
, Teqipients of the s 246 otdors Wi or Badl gver been “reasoniabily mwu ofbaving

ﬁ:eoﬂeneesmdinihemlwmmm” '

4. DISCUSSION

The parties proceeded on the basis that the decisions of the second and third
respondents to issue the search warrants and s 246 orders were amenebie fo judicial review
under 8 5 of the Admiristrative Decisions (Fudicial Review) Act 1977 (Cth) (ADJR Act) and

8 39B of the Judiciary Act 1903 (Cth) (Judiciary Act). 1 agree.

4.1 The “smspectz® points

As noted, the applicants’ primery comtentions of invalidity are founded upon the
propositions that the g 246 orders wrongly asserted the recipients were reasonably suspected
of having committed an offemce and the seavch warmants wrongly idemtified numerous
individuals as “suspects™. According fo the applicants, as a result of these matters, the s 246
orders and search watrants are bed on their face as they show the second and third
respondents addressed the wrong question, and the decisions to issue the s246 orders and
search warrants shonld be vitiated for ervor of law as those decisions: - (i) were based on facts
which did not exist, (ii) disclose a failure of any consideration of the statutary conditions for
the issue of the s 246 orders and search wazrants; (iii) disclose the taking into account of an
irrelevant consideration, and (iv) were so unreasonable that no reasonable perscn could have

The AFP answered the spplicants’ primary comtentions in a number of ways.

3¢
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The AFP sabmitted that while the 5 246 orders contained e clear clerical emor (the
statement that “{y]jou are reasonably suspected of having committed the offence stated in the
relevant warrant™), the same could not be said of the search warrants. The second condition
in the search warrants involves three alternatives — suspects, entities or other matters that are
the subject of the investigation. Some of the items eppearing in the lst are plainly not
capable of being “suspects” (for example, the item the “Mercedes CORBY Exclusive
Agreement”). It is not tenable, according to the AFP, to construe “entities" and “cther
matters” as excluding natural persons as to do so would “suggest that individuals who were
not suspects were intended to be excluded from the Second Condition (in circumstances
where non-suspect entities were included”, As the AFP put it:

An ordinary reading of the three catagories together, slong with the statutory context,

makas olear than en individual who is not a suspect way ncnetheless be listed in the
Second Condition.

The AFP said alzo:

«..the warrant makes plain that the only relevant offence is the offence for which
Schapelle Corby was convicted. It is abundantly olear that, cther than Schepelle

Corby, no person, entity or thing on the list could even conceivably be regarded as a
“suspect” in the commission of an offence.

it may be eccepied thet the search warrants identify Schapelie Corby as having
committed en offence. However, the second condition of the wamunts also idemtifies
“suspects, entities or other maiters that are the subject of the investigation”. 1 do not aceept
the submission that & patural person may fall within the descriptions “entities or other
matteys”, The natural and ordinary reading of the second condition is that all of the
individuals named in the list are “suspects... that are the subject of the investigation™. The
ordinary meaning of & “suspect”, in the context of a search warrant, is a person suspected of
having committed an offence.

The A¥P’s submission that no pezson in the kst “could even conceivably be regarded
8s a “suspect” in the commisgion of sn offence™ ignores the tenms of the second condition.
The submission also assumes both knowledge of the PoC Act (specifically thet, despite its
title, the Act provides a civil scheme for the recovery of Hterary proceeds and does not create
any offence in conpection with the payment of funds which might be recovered as literary
proceeds) and that such knowledge would tromp the plain words of the second condition.
Neither agsumption is justified. The AFP called no evidence explaining what ocourred before
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the second and third respondents, Nhﬂﬁhuuznmwhe&mmmjnﬂMLAFP%1kwmmﬂM¢ﬂm
mwumimﬂtﬁhimqm@&mmknmﬂdhmnﬂwsdmmcufmsPOCJuﬁhwm&rn;uanwhsu>
leuypuwﬁﬂsonif&eyhﬂdﬂmthmmhﬂm;ﬂmtﬁnmmnﬂnydMJWIQWeﬂwsumm
wmnnnimxunuﬂanﬂtmﬁmnynmmnhgﬂhuemd:ufﬂwiuﬁwﬁhﬂbqmmaﬂnghnﬂmlﬁn
umkrﬂns&mmdcumﬁﬁunwam“mmnmw."ﬁntmtﬂmsﬂﬁaﬁof&mkwmﬁ@ﬂhmﬁ

Riscmmmnﬁmtk)ﬂMmaeiuﬂmihmnofemmhmmms&mdeﬂmﬁh!mhummmuho
ﬂutIanlauhﬁuiﬂuuﬂMm=au:aﬁmmwdnn@eofpoaﬂﬂevmwshnv&mﬂlﬂmmsmmnﬁ
warrants and g 246 orders were issued. Rither:

(1) the second and third respondents did not consider the terms of the orders and
warrants; or

Gn1hemmmndamdﬂMmin;mxdamuknmdeWn&ws&wmunfﬂw!%ﬂ!Aﬂﬁnnﬂpmuof
mwmumwuyofﬁumnypnmmdsamlﬂutﬂwsdhnw:ﬁdnotmuuaamyoﬂhmw<n
oﬂmrwnmgbyﬂmmsmwhgﬁnanhmuﬂmwnrﬁwﬂﬁnhgﬂmtnumuﬂtﬁlwmhh
ewunthesuxmdandthhd:nqmnduuscowd:unhuwzhmnﬂihas2460nﬁnsumﬁng
ﬂm¢“hdmuan:nuuumﬂﬂyswuwﬂnﬂcfhwﬁmg(mmmnmwdime<ﬂﬁmwesmmuihlﬂm
relevant wamant” or the search warrants identifying nemerous individuals as
ﬂmqumm”omlmyrmkmm!bmﬁg!mdﬂhwcmmﬁduedﬂﬂsﬁmmsofﬂwcxdnsamd
warrsnis; or

G)ﬂwsﬂmmdamrmﬁdnammmmucmimnkmmﬂahmnﬂwsdmmaufﬁmPhCJMnhl
:mmuﬁofﬁwtwwwuyofﬁumuypnwumhamLhudﬂmycmmﬂmmdﬁm&mmwofﬂw
tmwaswmlumnmn&vuumﬂyammmwdﬂmtﬂnsdmmwcﬁiamﬂbunuﬂhmeoroﬂmm
'mmngbyﬂxmepﬂmq;ﬁwanhmrﬁmwurﬁmﬂmnhgﬁntpqmmmghlwhhhewaﬁ
ﬂu=3246umk=sandsﬂmdlﬂmansvuneimmmﬂonatﬂnnhmmmmﬂbrﬁdﬂ:pmmﬁas
indmwdfwnmgbnbmﬁmmmunb0bythaAFPhynuwm:ofﬂweuunumwsuum:nh
amdoﬁmrnuwmmﬂphmedba&me&msuxmﬂandﬂﬁninnpuuﬁnM&

Asaq&ﬂndhdow;whkhmwrmnﬁﬁﬁwisemuwtﬁni1u1dﬂbummmammnmm
the last possbility seems the mos kel e decsions 1 fsme tho § 246 ordes s e

umnnmsimﬁﬁmmﬁﬁﬂyiﬂhﬂ@dBthﬁdaﬁﬁfanﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ghutai;fﬁﬁhﬁ!ﬁh@&jﬂhﬁa

o L e

hlamﬁﬁmnhaﬂm:mﬂmﬂnkmihnthsuumhammmumcﬁd:mncmmﬁnanyokﬁaﬂ
enurﬁwmchIlmwemﬂeﬂbdabmn&theAEPmﬂhnﬁhdﬂutﬂcmﬁdnmth:hﬁhnﬂtMnﬂn
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acknowledged error in the s 246 orders affected the search warrants, As the AFP put it, there
mmeﬁdmeﬂmmmdmpmmmmesmmmmﬁdﬁng
theMwmaﬂxoul?Februaw%Mmdthsﬂﬁrdm@mdmtdidnmismmysMﬁ
orders, Ihcsubmisﬁonmakesmallowmﬁortheordinuypmeessofihedmﬁngof
inferences, Inparﬁmﬂu,imoﬂusﬂwmondmspondmiswmmed,itisknownthatﬂw
appﬁcaﬁonsforaﬂﬁemehwmhmdﬂ%oﬁmmmppomdbyashgleaﬂdm
Risknomthatﬂxeaﬁd&vitwasswombeﬁmeﬂwaemﬂmymdmtwﬁhthemmd
respondent acting as witness. Itis]mnmthaﬂhesemhmtsands%ﬁordmbearﬁle
references nimning sequentially from CM 14/035 to CM 14/044. It is an agreed fact that the
seuchwmnntsmdsmmmmnﬂismadatabomlﬁpmonl?FehunryZOM. In
WWMEWWSMSGMQSMM& Itdmnotmatmthatﬂmeunn
mdmthattbcsmndmpmdemlookednthasmﬁmﬂmbefomunﬁngﬂnmh
mmmmﬂaahsmmmm;_f" at had in mind the wholk

mmﬂphnedbnﬁmhmmﬁiudmgﬂhf&esmmmmﬁﬁe'; arch Warrs

Two other general submissions the AFP made may be accepted but neither Jeads to
themﬂmmdmforwﬁehmemmmthmmcmhmeuﬁmmd
search warrents were immaterial, It is true that “{wlhether or not a particular document
raccudswhathfaetwmt&d;dsim-malm’sremfutﬂwdecisionisaquesﬂmofﬁct"
wuvmwﬁrmmmmwmmczsmum It is also true
that the applicants bauﬁeonusofestabﬁshingmmtthutofthemdandﬁird
mmoﬁm(ﬂuvﬂmmyﬁrmmmmmlmmmm [2004]
FCAFC 63 at [19]). mmsmbmisﬁmm,glonommeﬁmdmmmm
himuingﬂlesmommmm&emdmpmdmeﬂ‘wﬁwlymﬁﬁedm
hewassaﬁsﬁedﬂmtthsmcipimtswmmomblysuspmdofhwingmmimdm
mmmumwwmmmu.mmwmmmm
mdthixdmpondemaacheﬂ‘ecﬁvdywﬁﬁedﬂmtheymsaﬁsﬁedwﬁe individuals
nominated in the second eondiﬁonm“mspeels...thatarethatmmesubjectofﬂm
mvestigation®,

Aoeordingly,&eAFP‘somnlunimﬂm'%stateofsnﬁsfacﬁonasmamnble
mpiuionﬂmﬂ:enddmmhadmmmimdoﬂ'mcewasmpmdmesm
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Wsmmmm”cm&ummﬁﬂkﬂmmmmm
mmndmtﬁdmmwmemmmmesmmmmmmnaﬂ. The
five reasons given by the AFP in support of ite comclusion, 25 explained below, are
unpersuasive.

First, the AFP snid that the statutory criteria to which the second respondent was
mquhdmhwmgndmmhdudetheadmofammahlempidonofthe
commission of an offence. This is true but, as noted, the s 246 orders expressly refer to the
sewndmspondontbeingnﬁsﬁedasWﬂnmﬁMofsudxamspicimmdthemch
warrants refer to the named individuals as suspeots the subject of an investigation. Further,
the investigation is described in the affidavit of Mr Kokles (and Mr Phun) &8 relating to
property and action which hes been or could be taken as follows:

On 27 May 2005, in Denpasar, Indonesia, CORBY was convicted of an offence,

being  forelgn indictable offence within the meaning of the Proceeds of Crime Act

rgzmmwasmmmm,mw&m

Proceeds of Crime action could be taken to apply for a Literery Proceeds order under
section 152 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 in respect of all Literary Procseds, as
defined under section 153 Provesds of Crime Act 2002, derived by CORBY in
mmmwmm-mmmmmmmwwmummm
veleted media representative entities by CORBY or on her behalf,

These paragraphs are dense to say the Jeast. The first paragraph, moreover, arguebly
mgmsm;mofmmsmﬂhcwmmmmmmmmsmm
deriving literary proceeds within the meaning of the PoC Act Accordingly, although it
formed no part of the conditions precedent to the issue of 2 8 246 order and/or search warrant
under the PoC Act, the material before the second and third respondents either (in the s 246
orders before the second respondent) expressly identified the reciplents as being reasonably
mpeﬂedofhaﬁngmmmiﬁed“theoﬁmnesﬂhdinﬂmmlwmtmm“w(hﬂnsemh
warmanis before the second and thid sespondents) expressly identified many individuals,
indudingﬂxemcipiem,msuspminﬁwﬁnmﬁsaﬁmmdfmthemwiuhafomﬁw
second s third respondens) identifid the fvestigation i attibiguous teams which did not
malte clear that neither the deriving of Iiterary prooeeds nor the payment or facliitation of &

- . ol Bk : By oA e

| mmmmmmmmmrymmmmmmm

thhdmspondmwemﬁmdmhmmgnddonmhcludeﬂmeﬁmdammmble
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mupicionofthewmmissimofmoﬂ‘enceisn&hﬂimﬁwofthehnmamialityofﬂm
material before them which expressly stated that the recipients of the 5246 orders and
mmﬁmwomﬂysmdofhmngmmmdmoﬁencemwmmpmmm
investigation. Iom MMumMmufﬂw ory pavwers vestsd in the

tymofﬂmmmﬂwsmm&m -
about the operation of the .

mam wmm a‘% ﬁy%lﬂﬂk*ﬁf Mm"_ll.m
Méﬁhﬁewmmmnfmmﬂmﬂmm -

Second, the AFP said that the references in the 5246 orders to the recipients being
“reasonably suspected of having committed the offence stated in the relevant werrant”
disclosed that the statements were in obvious error because the anly offence identified in the
warrant is that of Schapelle Corby for which she was convicted, and the warrants do not
identify any offence committed or suspected of having been committed by any other person.
Accordingly, the AFP submitted:

ﬁneApphcnnlsﬂmsnskﬂwCourthuwmﬂmSwmdkmpnndenta

nonsensical or meaningless statement. The Court would not readily infer that the

Second Respondent was satisfied of an unspecified matter. In the absence of any

relovant offence being spocified in the wamrent, the Court would thus infer that the

language in the Section 246 Order upon which the Applicants rely was a8 mere
clerical error.

When this submission is unpicked, it is apparent that it conflates several
considerations. The fact that the statements in the s 246 orders were the result of “clerical
error” may be accepted. }t is not part of the spplicants’ case that the AFP wrongly believed
the recipients of the 5 246 orders to be suspects in the commission of any offerice or that the

AFmenﬁmdlymsledthemondmpondmbyindudmglmomngly&lseMeMsmr

the 3246 onders. However, the charstesisation of the cletical crror a5 "mere” is more
dnfﬁmitmaweptafby"me ““mmwmmmmmﬁ*
'Ihestatemmtsmm; materi phi mm mm;;fdmj o =

wtauﬁed wmem 'I'hsswondmpnndmtdulsn inﬂxeeontextofawmantwh:ch
'idenﬂﬁesmtheseeomdcondiuonmnnmusmdmdmlsas “suspects...that are the subject of

the investigation™ and in the third condition describes the suspicions as relating to evidence
M&m&ewwmmﬁdmoﬁm&,mam&mhﬁmmm
ﬂwm&aﬁngofthe?meedsof&imeAﬁZOOLduiﬁngHmarmemdsasdeﬁmdmﬂu
section 153, Proceeds of Crime Act 2002". As noted, it is by no meens clear from the

s s s ittt
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warrant that deriving literary proceeds is not iself some form of offencs.” Accy
cannot be sid that the sccond respéndent tade & matinless of Bonmsmtul st

be said, for the same reason, that the

WS S Dor i s

s

second respondent was stating he was satisfied as to an unspecified maiter. £ 1hs ‘statement -

Itisthiscontextwhichleadstoﬂmﬂneeposm’bleexplamﬁonsidmﬁﬁnd above for
whatoocmredand,ifitisnecesmymexpresunyoomlusieninthismgud (which I do not
consider it is), makes the third of those possibilities most likely.

A number of factors support this inference.

toanalysetheprovisionsofﬂmPnCActgiventhclengthmd ity of that legislation,

Morwvu,insofarumalmplmaﬁommigbthmbemgiven,neitheroﬁheofﬁm
whosworeﬂneaﬂidavim,MrKnklesmerPmm,havebemeaﬂedmgiveevidmeein
mﬁmmmmmwmmmmmmmm
cimumstancesulﬁngforﬂ:eissueofthes%ﬁm‘dmandmhmm.

Fm'ﬂ:m,mdmostimpormﬂy,ﬂwsecondmspmdemiﬂuedﬂ:esmmm
&archwnnanumdthethimwspmdamissuedﬂnmhwmmmMWhichmminthe
€rroncous statements — as to the existence of the reasonable suspicion and the individunls
being suspects — as identified. The issue of a search warrant and & s 246 order are solemn
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mmmwmmd

ncts:ssuedtmderthehand of the md:vzdualmagnsm The

nfﬁemmmmed,mwﬂt

Mmmmmmmsmhﬁedmmvdmgamnmmmﬂeef
hmngmcbdofhwmgmmmdmoﬁ‘mwmbemgmmmmvmmm
thmismoﬂ'anemdmﬂ:ePoCActmd‘yetdismhwdmoumatﬁmas“mmc!eﬁea[
mors"mddecidedmismetheordmandwminmywent(ﬂwswmdmsible
explansation). If that was the decision-making process, then it was so unreasonable that no
reasonable magistrate could have made the decisions, Yet, accepting this last proposition —
mmmmmmmmmmm-hmm
AFF’s submissions necessarily involve, once properly analysed. How else cam it be said that
themmnmmswmm-mehapmmmwofthesmmmmaimwdiscmedin
mmhwmnu—playedmpmmthemmdrupmdm’smmningmasﬂmm
would have jt?

';"?‘_"_',,_'inmdammmmmmmmﬁmm
perate inxemafﬁmymceeds ledthesemnﬂandtﬂgd respondents -

imgumm|hgjﬂﬂ”ssuwﬁmHM3‘Wm°°“mﬂ’n“ﬂﬂMﬁﬂmmBﬁmm‘““’”m”-:v-:};;kh

Whﬂelhavesaiditisnotmoesaarymmnkeaﬁndhgasmwhichoftbeﬂmc
possibilities is correct because each involves legal ervor sufficient to quash the s 245 orders
mdswchwmmu,lhawwmiduedthesematmbecmmofﬂnwayinwhichﬂ:eheaﬁng
proceeded. Inshort,theAFPwaseﬁﬁedoftheappﬁmforidmﬁfyingtbedumﬁve
wayshwhichﬂwyaswmdthmmusthavebmkgalmbyihesemdandthird
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respondents, WhattheAFPdidnotacimowiedgewasﬂmt,whenmalysed,itsown
submisﬁms—thatﬂwsemdmdﬂ:irdmspeﬁemmmbemkenmhmmsidmdwhat
m%mﬁzmmd%ﬁe%mﬁhhmm“mdﬁdm‘—woﬂdhwtbe
mmndmdﬂ:irdrespnndmtsecﬁnginameﬁnwhjchmmomblemgimmcould
hawamd{thatis,byissﬁngmlemndocmidmﬁﬁdngpwphmmspwmdofbwing
oommitwdandoﬂ‘mueandassuspeats, whocculdnotbesmpectsormmetedofany
oﬁencegiwnmemﬁfﬂ:elesishﬁmmﬂiebasisthatmmmmma'ﬁnm

s were e sor by oA TP,

Third, the AFP said that o svidene was placed befbre the sscond or thicd
mmmmmmemmmmwmmwmymmmw
Corby. Asdiscussedabove,ﬂwmmﬁalphcedbefmeﬂlesemdmdﬂﬁzdmspondmdid
idenﬁfythat&chapelleCorbyhadeommiﬁedanoﬂ'eme. However, the problem is the
combhaﬁonofthemeoussmmmdwhatﬂmwaldidmtmy. The matarial did
not explain that the PoC Act created no oﬁeneeinrespwtofthederivaﬁonofliﬁmry
procwda,whoﬂmbySchapdleCmbyinduiﬁngmmhprweedsmbyamthermin
facilitating that derivation. The material did nt explain that a literary procseds order is not
fonnhdupnnanysuchoﬁ'eme,ﬁewbmematedbythePoCActbeingauiviLmherﬂm
mmmmmmﬁﬂﬁdmmmmmmmwmmmm
mcipim&ofthesl%oﬁmwmmsmab]ympmdofhavingmmdmoﬁmeemd
meindiﬁduﬂsﬁmdhﬁummnﬁﬁmof&esmmwempeMMMjmof
the investigation. hthcseﬁmmmmﬂxeﬂetﬁatﬂwmmﬁaldidmtidmﬁﬂthz
mmimionofmoﬁmeebyanypmmmsmpdhmrbydwmtwthe
m’swbmhﬁmmmemmmMmpmmmmnhgmofﬁe
second (or, for that matter, the third) respondent,

Fowth,meAFPsaidﬂmﬂwenmmsmmappemﬁxmhandemyoneof
thes24601dmmditis“Mghlyimprohable”thatmemmdmspondmtmdeduing
himaelfmﬁsﬁedthateachmdpieﬂmmmblymamdofmmiﬁngmoﬁmm. 1

disagree. Thembmisaimmthatﬂ»mdmdmtdaspimﬁemmt'

dramhnm,themmdnmbigxﬂﬁesﬁ!ﬂseAFP'smmﬁd.mdhhnkofmymgem

42
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explannﬁonx'ntheaﬁdavitasmhowﬂaePoCActopmd,hgwthatihaPoCActdidnm
Memyoﬁmwrdaﬁngmﬂledeﬂvaﬁmofﬁmymmdsyuissmdordmmd
wmmassuﬁngthatmmmuspwplewmmtedwiﬂ:meCmbyfnmﬂypeﬂnpsdeﬁvhg
IiMryproceedsweresuspemdofhavingmmiuadanoﬂ‘mce. It is that assumption which

' bighly improbeble. | What i not highly. impeobeble s that the secand: respendent, s

il by o AR, lbet by iapocent s, sod Weongy assumad fatthece whsan offmcs

Fiﬁh,theAFPsaidthﬂlhemmmin“ﬁchihesMordmwemaddmssed(mhas
to “anamedcmnpanyorindividualoxanyoﬂmmployee of a specified entity”) made it
were reasonably suspected of having committed an offsnce, As the AFP put it:

This submigsion has to be assessed in the overall comtext. The references to “or any
other employee™ in two of the s 246 orders and % “any other resident” in another follows the
idmﬁﬂcnﬁon,hmpimlleﬁas,ofthepﬁmymiﬁemdﬂumdm In these circumstances

dedaﬁngthﬂhemuﬁsﬁedﬂmteachﬁrstmmedmnipimofﬁwordmmmbly
suspected of having committed an offence.

Anocther point should be made. 'IheAFP,initxwﬁt&enandomlsubmissions,
emphasiudtbﬂthes%o:ﬂmmdmchwmmuldnmbemuﬁnised“minuhlymd
ﬂnelywithaneyckecnlymedmtthmepﬁmofmf‘,ciﬁngmmwrﬁrlmﬁgmﬁon
and Evimic Affairs v Wy Shan Liang (1996) 185CLR 259; [1996] HCA 6 at 272. However,
mdastheappﬁcmﬂssubmiﬁed,thisobsmaﬁmomnmﬂwmmfmmadmmsmﬁw
decision-maker’s decision, The 5 246 orders and search warrents are not the reasons for the
decision. Theymtheins&umaﬂsauﬂwisingacmihatotherwisemu!dbemlawﬁu.
Reasonsmaynotbeobtainedforaducisimmissueasmchwam(smandSc.tha:a
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(e}(iii)ofﬂleAD.lRAct). Momom,the!awinrelaﬁmmsemwamnuisembﬁshedin
George v Rockett, Inparﬁculm-,“shictmpﬁanoewiththemmzywndiﬁonsgoveming
ﬂmissueofsemhwm“wasaﬁdbyﬂmmgh&mw“giwaﬁmmﬁepmpcwofthe
legislation™ (at 111), in that cage the Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld), but the same conclusion
applies in the present oase, F\nthar,tlwteisimpcsedonﬂmjusﬁm'muingﬂmmmhwmm
adulytobesaﬂsﬁﬁﬂmthemdiﬂonsoﬂhaismofmewmmmﬁﬂﬁﬂedmd“the
wmm%ﬂdumﬁejmﬁw’saﬁsﬁcﬁmthatthmmmmabhgmmdsﬁrthe
suspicion end relief” (also at 111), Accordingly, theze is no scope for the aperation of the
pﬂndpleswhichhfmthems&ucﬂmofmfwaﬁnhﬂmaﬁwdedsiominﬂmmview
of 4 search warrant, Mifﬂxmwe,thaminenhoﬁhes%mdmisemﬁousmd
thntinthemd:mtsonlyslighﬂylessso. Neither eror, to a person properly informad
abmﬁtheoperaﬁmofﬂ:ePoCAcgismbefomdonlybyaneyekeenlyammzdtnthe
perception of errorx.

Forﬂ:eumns,them'ssubnﬁmionﬁ:attheappﬁm'meisbuwmaﬁlse

dedﬁomofthemmdmdﬁhdmpondmtwhmmmﬁngmmemﬁomm
shouldbehfenedmhawplayedmpminﬂzemdandﬂ:irdmspmdmt'smoﬁng

FETENNS, it b /" The cmancobs staterienis st be infirred 1 have besn'a
deciding thiir disoretion 1 fise: the s 246 ‘ordars and - seascli Wazznts, < The

ﬂmscofih@—discmi  thus miscarsied: K it is necessary to label how it miscarried it s

sufficient to saﬁhnt‘wianééeptthatitispossibleitmlﬂdhmbm in any one of the thres ways
Iidmﬁﬁedabomdthoughlwnsiderhmostﬁkelythmmemmdmdthirdmpmdm
weﬁmﬂyhdiﬂombyﬂwmmiﬂmmmmbeﬁmﬁmmmamﬁm
fact — that the PoC Act created moﬂ‘aneamlaﬁngtothedaﬁvaﬁmofﬂtermymds—
when there is no such offence. In any event, asIhavcsaid,whataverpomibiﬁtyremesm
theuuepoﬁﬁon,beitaﬁﬂmofoonsidmaﬁunmmmﬁfmmmablmmmimmm
Mﬁefumﬁeuimofmoﬁmoﬁﬁmkmmﬂmmﬁmmmvmﬁm The
smmmmmmo:ﬂingly,mmbethed.

Totheaxtantitismnrymsaymomabomtheseismubymonofparﬁmlm'
submissions, I do so in an abbreviated form.
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While the grounds in 58 5(1)h) and 5(3Xb) of the ADIR Act {no evidence and
dedsimbasedmﬁctmﬁchdidnﬂexist)mmnﬁmdhﬂn&mpeﬂﬁdsﬁrﬁr
dmmigration and Multicultural Affatrs v Rajamannitam (2002) 210 CLR 222; [2002] HCA
32 at [58]), the grounds in s 5(1){(e) (improper exercise of the power) and s 5(1)() (decision
moﬂaerwiucmuarymhw)ofthemmmpleadedbymeappﬁm,mnotm
confined. Nor is the jurisdiction under s 398 of the Judiciary Act. Even if consideration is
limitedtuthegroundsinsuS(I)(h)mdSﬁ)(h)ofﬂwADJRApt.onthethiﬂposﬁbﬂityasto
whummmemmnmmmmsslmmemmumhmmm
but for the finding, wonld be satisfied. To explain, if the second ard third respondents had
beenmisledinwbeﬁcvhgtthoCAmmﬁadmoﬂ%merdaﬁngmdeﬁvingﬁtemry
pmceedsthm.gimthewtmaofﬁ:esmmdmandmhwmmimlndingthe
emoncous statements, it should be inferred that unless satisfied the individuals were
mmb!yﬂmdofhaﬁngwmmitwdtheoﬁ‘mwmmmspwwinthcinvwﬁgaﬁm,
thesecmdandthirdmpondmnmuldmthavemadeﬂwdecimmchnﬂenge.
Oﬁx&wise.ﬂxeﬁrstandsmndpmsibiliﬁmmgesmﬂl)(e)nnd{i)oftheADJRAct.

Idonotaeoeptﬁeapplicams’mbmissimﬂmamagisﬂateispmclndedﬁommhng
inmwnsidemﬁmmythingnotexmenlymd-hsm&)ofthePoCActindeciding
whetherornottoissueanordarundersmn. That would be to ignore the discretion which
eﬁmmnifﬁemagimissaﬁsﬁedaswthemquimdmminma). In terms of the
exwdseofdisueﬁon,ﬁehwnemﬁnsﬂmtrdwmmhdevmtmnﬁdmﬁom,ifnot

mprmlyidmﬁﬁ@mmbedmmdmma‘%ubjeu-mm,mpemdmoﬂhe'

Act” (Minister for Aboriginal Affeirs v Pako-Wallsend Ltd (1986) 162 CLR 24; [1986) HCA
40 at 40), Ieanmtseemytbingwhinhmuldﬁmitﬂwdimﬁonins%@)toﬁwmaﬁm
specified in s 246(g) — (c). For this reason, the label of taking into account an irrelevant
consideration is inapt. The problem is not that s 246(2) prahibited the second and third
mmmﬁomconddeﬁngmmomousmpmmmdﬁmdmdmdudsmmmad
of having committed an cffence. Theproblemisﬁ:atdeaplmethemmﬁommﬂmem-yin
ﬂzesmordmmdsmchwm.thaeismoﬁmoeknownmhwwhichthevmious
recipients and listed individuals could kave committed.
IdomtaeceptﬂxeAFPsmbmiesimthatﬂ:estdmanﬂmcbmmtsaboﬂd
not be considered together. As explained, I infer that is how the second respondent dealt with
themmdﬂlmﬂnworsmthemaﬂ’emd,mdmmmeoﬁm Purther, the zame error
wmmmofwmwmwmmmmmlspmzom
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Although&ethﬁdmspmdmumbehfemdhhawhadthes%ﬁmﬂémbefomhim,me
mhmmmlﬁnedlhemmdmndiﬁoninmesamemsﬂisﬁngnummus
Mﬁdwsaswspeemﬂ:embjeaoftheimesﬁgaﬁm)whiuhinmdoﬁmeligimﬂum
thesameﬁneepomibiﬂﬁaoi‘midmﬁﬁedahove.

the exercise of discretion. Norismwbwisforvdﬂ:holdingmﬁefappm The legal errors
ammatuid,gomtheheutofﬂ:ededsiommissmthcsmmmdmchmmd
ﬂmdecisionsinfemdbythoseemmahuuldbequsbed.

meothernrgtmam%ichthonppﬁmtgpﬂmnyalsobeconsidmdinan
abbreviated form,

42 Muretobesaﬁsﬁndefmmm;ywndiﬁonforn“ordm

o mmnablysuspemdcfpos‘mshg,orhavhgunderhisorher
oonirol,'tninhﬂpmpanyorﬂvidm'nlmmdal;or

(in ﬂ:eownerorlesseeoﬂheet:mpum;or
(i) anmployeeofﬂ:wwmulmoﬂhamputer;

Ammﬂmgmthcappﬁmnu,ﬂ;esﬂﬁmdmfnﬂadtommdﬂmmdmspondm
being so satisfied, hmkad,ﬂ:esmmmidonlythﬂhemmpmdmmuﬁsﬁed
ﬂmrﬂaepm“usesorhasusadﬂr.wmpw.

Iiisﬁueﬂmﬁ;esmmdmdomgmtheirfmu,disclonthﬂthemondmpmdm
wassaﬁsﬁedasmthematwsinsmxb). Thetennaafszdﬁ(sz)maybemmmad
withwhanhesmmsmlcvmﬂysaidinthistegardasﬁoﬂows: .

And whereas | am satisfied that:

. thmmmumblemnndsibrauapemingﬂmuvidmﬁdmmﬁﬂis
heldimorismmibleﬂnm,ammpmordahsﬂmgedwinuatm
promises;

® You ate reasonably suspected of having committed the offence stated in
ﬂ:eldmmatmdammwhomwhnuudﬂmcompmw
device; and

» yonhuverelewnth:owledgeofﬁwmpnﬁerordeviceoracompm
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network of which the computer or device forms & part and measures
uppﬁedmmnmdmhzldin,oramsi‘bleﬁ'om,ﬂ:emputaror
device,

'Iheﬂrstandthirddotpoﬁnsappearsﬁnrefertosubs-ssma)(a)md(c)respecﬁvely.
Iheseconddotpointbemnoresunblmoetos%ﬁ(z)(b)‘ Despite the obvious differences,
ﬂwapplicants’argmnentsaremtaﬂmcﬁveonﬂﬁspoint.

The applicants submitted that the presumption of regularity did not apply to
magistatemdthustheonderhadhshowmnﬂnoﬁtymiﬂfaw,amqtﬁmmuﬂhatwaﬂdnm
applymawammissuedbyasupuiorMWhichhasﬂ:ebeneﬁtofthepresumpﬁmof
regularity (Ousley v The Oueen (1997) 192 CLR 69 at 38-89 end 108-109). Whether or not
thepresmnpﬁonofmﬂnﬁtyshoﬂdaﬂmdbinfmimmmtsisnﬂnmmﬁmpmem
discussion. Suffice it to say that, if the presumption did so extend, this ground should fail. It
isalaonatapparmtﬂntas%ﬁo:ﬂuismmouldbeﬁesubjectofthesamerequiremantus
& warrant issued by an inferior court, AnmdutmdenZ%isintendedtobemcillarytoa
warrant, facilitating its execution. 'Iheconnidmﬁonswhichsupportthepﬁnciplethata
wmammunshoijisdicﬁmonﬂsﬁme,ifimmdbymhlﬁrhrmtmnotmadﬂy
applicable, Fmthu,ﬂaewiamimpﬁnu’phndiedmbythcappﬁmmﬁmngto
Mleyﬂlll(mmdy,ﬂwtbmsehmdrespamhﬁ&pm&slymfemdhﬂhaﬂm
MWcmﬁﬁonitshouldbehﬂmdhemmtmﬁsﬁedasmtheoﬂms)isofdaubtﬁﬂ
application in this context. Fimlly,ﬂleismis.oratleastshouldbe,Wheﬂmﬂmmnd
respondentshmﬂdbeinfmedmtmhavebammﬂﬁ:ﬁedinauoﬁhechwmﬁmm. That
quesﬁon,if.mked,mnstbemweredasainstﬂmappﬁmts.

Givenﬂ:eoomlusimalhavcmchedﬂntthes%ﬁoxﬂmmdseamhwmm
invaﬁdmoﬂmgromdslpreﬁamthmmydedsimw!ﬁchwoﬂdbesemasgiving
support to the applicants® arguments on this point,

4.3 Misrepresentstion

The applicants in NSD 201 of 2014 contended that the search warrants should be
quashedbecausetheAFPmin&nﬁonﬂlymiﬂedﬂwmmnﬂmpmdemhym&ngﬂmthe
AFPwasnotsaﬁsﬁedthutSevmhadwmpﬁethhthesmmfo:pmducﬁmwhena
mmualmgimewashplweforomﬁmingmmpﬁmoeandbyﬁiﬁngmdisdmmamiﬂ
infozmaﬁontoﬂxestatenfSwm‘smmpliame.
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TheappﬁcmsinNSD2070f2014mntendedﬁmtﬁwAFPshmﬂdbeinMedmhave
miﬂed(induding,insomrapcm,ddibMynﬁsled)themdmpondmasm 8 series
ofmmhdndingthat~ﬁ)MrKﬂmtzismmmabbrsuapmdofhgvingmmhhd
an offence, (ﬁ)mxmmsmamspeuinmemvuﬁgaﬁon, (iif) Mercedes Corby was &
suspectinﬂ:einvesﬁgaﬁomﬁv)moﬂmnamedimﬂﬁdmlswmsmpemhﬂw
mvmﬁmﬁm(v)swmm&myMWManwemmSm (vi) Seven had
ﬁnishedpmdndngdommmundertheszozm,(ﬁi) the Mercedes Corby exclusive
agreemmmademreﬂnnneetopaymmts, (viii) SeventhwukhadagresdtopayMemedcs
mdforSchapeueCorbyﬂ-Smﬂlion,(vﬁi)MrKoldestedtnoomplyvdththeguidelm
umpﬂvﬂsgemfaredmhpmguph9ofhisaﬂidavh,md(ix)MKnlestmseiu
documenuonlyinaouordancewiththetemsofﬂmseamhwam

The first maiter which mnust beistated 1s that thete was 1o proper Sundation for the

submiseion in NSD 207o£ 2014 tiat the AFP-defibersicly imisled the eoud respondent. The

evidence simply doesnotnpportﬂ:atsubnﬁm?onmdlmjactit.

second and third respondects was mis ading insofer a5 it identified peoplo as ressonably
suspected of having corsmitted and. tifase o 2 suépests, Thet camed fie discretion to
miscarry for the reascns discussed sbove, Apart from those maters, the essence of the
appﬁmnts'eomplﬁmiaﬂ&themndmdﬁkdmpondmmnﬁshdbmmtheywm
nmﬁ:ﬁamedabomthemgemmmwhichhadbmmdcmmmdtheﬁmeforcompﬁm
withihzszmomduorthﬂSevenwasmnﬁmﬂngwcomplywhhthesmminnm-
operative manner, Sevenhavhgmqmaclaﬁﬁcaﬁonofcmminism,pmvidedﬁuﬁa
wmmmmmm,mmmmmmmmw
and firther documents would be produced.

 Theréisno wmmmmmmm Phun, regtettably, create an
ion about the -status of Beven's: production contrary to the: frue position, Any

Teasonable person reading Mr Xeidles® afidavit would infor it Soven pag produced

documents up to 14 February 2014 and this production wes inadequate.. Thatwas not the tras .
position, as the facts recorded above disclose. Any reasonable person reading Mr Phun's
aﬂﬁwﬂwmﬂdmchthememdusim,desﬁuﬂnﬁdﬂ:ﬂﬁammluof:ﬂeged
iradequacies in Seven’s production referred to in paragraph 7(s) of each affidavit had in fact
been answered in Ms Munsie's letters senttoﬂwAFPat4.24pmandS.4ﬁpmon 17
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Febmyary 2014, before Mr Phun swore hig affidavit on 18 February 2014 in support of the
further scarch warrant.

The AFP’s submission thet there iz no evidence that Mr Kokles or Mr Phun knew
about the status of all communications with Seven’s sclicitors at the time they swore their
affidavits is misconceived. As the applicants sabmitted, Mr Kokles and Mr Plum were giving
evidencs in their capacity as officers of the AFP, They were giving evidence sbout the AFP
being not satisfied #s to the production by Seven. In these circumstances, this submission by
the AFP has no merit.

Idmdonﬂmeptﬂmﬁmwemwuiﬂmimemmﬂmsmtheucmdmd
third respondent. - The idéntificatio of‘pmnu pably suspested of having commitied
n offénce Mﬁwmmmﬁmmm@wmﬂlﬁ&m So oo, by material
omismn,wastheAFP's description of the circumstances relating to complisnce with the
8202 order for production. Apart from these matters, however, I do not sccept that the
material placed before the second and third respondents was misleading in the way the
applicants in NSD 207 of 2014 contended, Af worst, things said to have been intended in the
meterial did not occur on execution of the warrantz, but this does not mean that the stated
intentions were not held at the time. Accordingly, thess contentions must be rejected.

The real argument, accordingly, is the one put by the applicants in NSD 201 of 2014,
an argument which the other applicants alse adopted and is equally applicable in their case.

The position is this, If imocent but nevertheless material misrepresentations which
may be inferred to have induoced the issue of 2 search warrant and s 246 order have the effect
ofmumngthewnmntandorder thmﬂxmwmmmdmﬁmshnuldbequam This is

fﬁeiwﬁ%mmﬁmmmmﬂ.wmwmmmmm

m;)f%iﬂ. . If, however, no misrepresentation, no metter how egregious. and despits it
mducmgﬁeissueofﬂmseuchwmmtmdﬂ%oﬁer can vitizte the search warrant or
8 246 order if innocently made, then these warrants and crders should not be quashed on this
ground. This is becaunse I am satisfied that all of the misrepresentations were innocent. The
AFP officers bad no intention of mislzading the second and third respondents,

The AFP submitted that the decision in Lego Ausiralia Pty Lid v Paraggio (1994) 52
FCR 542; [1994] FCA 1286 (‘Lego’) answers the issue against the applicants. In Lego, the
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Full Court of the Federal Court rejected the notion of suy free-standing duty of disclosure in
ﬂzemnkingofanapplimﬁmﬁuamchwamnt(nﬁﬂ. 1t also seid at 555 that, despite
this:

ltismm-mmmdmmmimmdmisimmybevmmdby
ﬂmdmmiﬂep:meMmmﬂuommkw(megSirWﬁliamWade,
Adminisirative Law (5th ed, 1988), p 257). The AD(JR) Act itself makes such a
provision: see 5 5(1)(g).

Section 5(1)(g) of the ADJR Act requires fraud,

Atleastmmbsaquemdecisimmmhgnasmquhingdeﬁbm
mimepreswtaﬁm(heﬂ‘ecgﬁmﬂ)wembleamchwmm&quashedonttﬂsmmd
(Magjzoub v Kepreotis [2009] NSWSC 1498 at [68]). Amother might be taken to be
suggesting the same thing (Jiiani v Wilkelm (2005) 148 FCR 255: [2005] FCAFC 269 at
[98]-[101]). Another decision, in obiter dicta, concludes that frand is required (Firearm
Distributors Pty Ltd v Carson [2001] 2 Qd R 26; [2000] QSC 159 ut [42], [44]).

Theapplimnusubnﬂmdmugomdkﬁngﬁshablqpﬁmnﬂyonthehdsmme
Mmma%ﬁ,wmchmakuitmoﬂmcemmmammhappﬁcaﬁmina
sm&hmmmifthesmmmisﬁlsemmiﬂeaﬁngmomimmymmwﬂﬂngwithom
which the staternent is misleading. There was no equivalent provision in the stetute under
consideration in Lego. However, 25 the AFP submitted, s 266 cuts both ways, On one view,
it might support the existence of a duty of disclosure. On another, it might be thought that the
mvisionindiuhsﬁelmkofmymmhdﬁyandminﬁmﬁmnmminvaﬁdnewmm
issued by reascn of unintentiona! misrepresentation. On balance, 1 do not consider that s 266
is a sound basis upon which Lego might be distinguished.

The applicants submitied that Lego ambraced innocent misrepresentations and the
case(orcases)mtheeonminvolvedam?n'eadingofhgnmmsimplywmng. Iam not
persuaded thet Majzoub v Kepreotis involves a misreading of Lego. In particular, when
regardishadtotherefamcetosS(l)(g)ofﬂleADJRActinthepmageﬁnmLegnuSSSit
is difficult to conclude that the Full Court was saying that anything less than fraud would
suffice as an independent ground for quashing & search warrant if the issue was one of &
failure to disclose material matters. Aconrdingly,lmm'd&thmlmboundbyugoinihis

regard. /On this besis; despite the fact tht 1 am satisfed: - @mmmmmm’-

somplisd with the

ﬂuzdmpondent, bym&nttheAFPmmtuhﬁndﬂm&mhnd

£0)-
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smmmmmmammmmmmhmmm
mdbyﬁﬂmgWMmdemﬁmﬁmhﬂteMofSemscomplmmd(ﬁ)the
misrepresentations by omission and incomplete statements were material 1o the decisions to
mmsusmmmmn«mmmmsmmmmm‘

zmmmm Wha&erthelaokofmymmedymﬂnsmmdms&hsﬁcﬁorymnotammfm

present consideration.

It is appropriate here also to deal with the applicants® contention that the second and
third respondzats each fuiled to take into account the extension of time granted in respect of
the s 202 order and the fact that, at the time the scarch warrants and s 246 orders were izsued,
Seven West was taking steps to comply with the s 202 order, which was said to amount to a
failure to take into account relevant considerations, The apparent basis for this submission is
the existence of a number of less intrusive measures available ta give effect to the purposes of
the PoC Act. Nothing further was advanced in support of this comtention, As with the
question of irrelevant considerstions, the submission misconceives the nature of what is
required by the PoC Act. There is nothing in the provisions which suggests that the use of and
extent of compliance with other measures are mandatory considerations under the PoC Act.
In any event, there is no evidence that the second and third respondents failed to consider any
of the material before them in respect of the & 202 orders issued to Seven West, The
applicants’ complaint is really directed to the conduct of the Messrs Kokies and Phun in
epplying for the scarch warrants and s 246 orders which, for the reasons given above, does
not provide any basis for quashing the search warrants and orders.

4.4 No sworn evidence ax to suapicion of svidential material

The epplicants contend that the search wairants are invalid because the affidavits in
support of the application for them to be issued did a0t contain a statement thet the deponent
believed that there were reasonable grounds for suspecting that there was evidential matexial
at the premises. The argument is based on the observation in George v Rockezt at 111 that “it
is impliclt in [the section] that the applicant for the search wamant should entertain the
suspicion and belief to which that section refers...”. When read in context as a whole, I do
not accept that the High Court was saying that a search wartant would be invalid if the
applicant did not give evidence on oath as to the bolding of the relevant suspicion. Nor do 1
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consider Williams v Keelty (2001) 111 FCR 175; [2001] FCA 1301 at [167] to support that
reading of George v Rockett.

Nothing in the PoC Act suggests that invalidity should be the result of a failure of the
deponent of the affidavit supporting the application to swear that the deponent holds the
relevant suspicion. Moreover,andastheAFthniﬂ@d,thePoCAminfwtmggesmﬁmt
there is no such requirement in respect of s 225 because other provisions contain express
requirements to the effect alleged (s 17(3)(a), 18(3)(a), 19(1)(¢) and 20(3)(a)).

Accordingly, I reject this ground of invalidity.

4.5 Other grounds in NSD 207 of 2014

The applicants in NSD 207 of 2014 cortended that the search warrant and s 246 order
thembjwofﬂntproceedhgwhvaﬁdbwwwthmwhsuﬁdmteﬁmms&ﬁsﬁw
reasonable person that there was evidential material of the kind fisted in the search warrant
accessible from the computer of, or at the premises of, Mr Kalantzis. I do not accept this
ground. Thmemssomemaminlbeﬁmthesmdmpmdmmmppmthebeliefﬂmtm
Kalantzis held evidential material relating to the derivation of literary proceeds by Schapelle
Corby or other members of the Corby family which might enable an application for a literary
proceeds order. As such, it cannot be said that, i the way the applicants in NSD 207 of 2014
claim in any event, the decizion of the second respondent to issue the search warrant and
8 246 order was so unreasonable that no reasonable person could have made it.

The applicants in NSD 207 0£ 2014 also contended that the issue of the search warrent
and 5246 order was unnecesgery and that Mr Kalantzis should have been given the seme
opportunity as Seven to provide documents under a & 202 production order. According to the
applicants, given that a search warrant is & mechenism of Inst resort, no reasonable parson in
the second respondent’s position would have decided to issue the search warrant or & 246
order. Idisagree. Properly analysed, this is & complaint about a decision to use one statutory
power when another was available in circumstances where nothing in the statats dictates that
the use of one or other power is necessary or should be preferred. Moreover, it is directed to
tie decision of the AFP to apply for the search warrent and & 246 order rather then the second
respondent’s dacision to issue it.

The other complaints of the applicants in NSD 207 of 2014 rolate to the execution of
the search werent smd claime for iegal professional privilege. I made an order that

h.
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paragraphs 1 to 5 of the amended originating application in NSD 207 of 2014 be heard
sepmlyﬁmandinadvmofau'otherismainthatproeeedhg. Accordingly, those
other issues nead not be addressed at this time,

5, CONCLUSIONS

Theappﬁmhboﬂ:mwedingshsveasubﬁshedthatthcsmmmm
wmmhmmmﬁanyaﬁemdbylegﬂm,ﬂmmmequmofwlﬂnhiaﬂntmw
be made quashing the s 246 orders and search warrants, I will make orders accordingly and
hﬂufﬂ:ﬁmﬁomﬂ:eparﬁesasmoﬂmamequmﬁalmdmwhichshouldbemads,in
puﬁmlu,abomﬂmmaﬁidaeiudpmmmthemhmntswhichishddbyﬂw
AFP, the balance of the proceeding NSD 207 of 2014 and costs,

One other comment should be made. Under r2.32 of the Faderal Cowrt Rules 2011
(Cﬁl),apmwhohamismﬂﬂedhimmmdommhuofﬂgbgbutsubjectm
any conirery confidentislity order. Under r2.32(4) & person may also apply for leave to
inspect other documents, Icoxmideritapmmimmmnbmorduthstinsofuasﬂae
dwmmtsﬂedmﬁxeComdisdnseﬂnmesofﬂ:eindiViduﬂsidmﬁﬁedaspm
reasmblymmpmdofhavingmmﬁﬁedmoﬁmoeorasmmpm.oﬂmthmthnse
individnalswhoseidenﬁﬁesmalmadyinthepubﬁcdomainorwmplacedinﬁxepublic
domainbycomsddmhgihehuﬁng(b&ng!mﬁmMmsie.VmiﬁosKﬂmtﬁgSchapoﬂe
Omby,mdMuwdesCmby),thosepmofﬂwdocummshmddhemde&zmbjwtofa
mﬁdenﬁalilyorda-moonwmplatedbyrmm)(a). The reason for this is that it is common
gromdbetwemthepuﬁesthatmofthmindividmhwue,ormmuldhawbem,
mmmpmddmmnﬁﬁngmoﬂenwuamdinthumchwmmdsﬁﬁ
orders. Ihnvemadeorqumshingﬂnseamhwmmandsﬁﬁordus,ﬁm&ctofwhiah
is that they are taken not to kave existed. Further, it is not necessary for those names to be
disdmedforthepubﬁcmmdmmndthcappﬁm’daim.them‘sdefmuofﬂmse
claims, and these reasons for judgment. In thess circumstances, the potential for harm to
ﬂxoseindividudsbymmofthedisdomofpaﬁsofdmmmmmlingthairm
substantially outweighs any public inteest in such disclosure. The order I propose to make is
nMannn-pubHcaﬁmoermdurefemdhhsB?AAoﬁthsdcrdCaquf
aimlraliazimI977(Cd1)whichmab¢ahighbarmthemkingofmymmhotder(mdone
that could not be satisfied in this case). The effect of my order is only to prevemt the
Mmmwm&mamemmﬁamm,ﬁmgmdﬂ:ednmﬁledin
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C ' Thig and the following pages comprise
tha annexure marked Q’ to the affidavit of

womon R ARl

HER HONOUR: The 202. Right. Jint of e Fascarsotitor o Suprems Coutt
MR WATSON: It’s called the production order, I think, in familiar terms. Then at
201, talking again about why the warrant was issued. At line 318:

That’s a matter of public record. Idon’t know the exact figures, but it was in
relation to the book, My Story.

The Commonwealth DPP was litigating that matter. The AFP assisted in the
investigation. The Commonwealth was able to secure over 100-odd thousand
dollars, but another couple of hundred thousand dollars went off shore and was
outside the jurisdiction. And at 219, I just point this up because it shows the
difference between the production order which does leave it to the person to whom
it’s given to interpret it as to what should be produced as opposed to a search warrant
when you're dealing with a matter with a relevance of urgency which had been
proved by previous experience. At 431 there’s a question asked. I don’t think this
will be a matter of contest.

HER HONOUR: Four hundred and - - -

MR WATSON: 219.

HER HONOUR: Yes.

MR WATSON: Line 431.

HER HONOUR: 431. Sorry. Okay. I've gotit.

MR WATSON: A question is asked. This question is Mr McWilliam himself. And
your Honour can see that it’s somebody who knows what’s going on. When you
read the whole of the answer your Honour will see that it's somebody who knows
intimately what was going on. I watched the matter and I know Mr McWilliam’s
voice. He lectured me in equity.

HER HONOQUR: So the question is the whole from 431 to 442, yes?

MR WATSON: ButIcan't blame everything on him.

HER HONOUR: That’s a question, is it?

MR WATSON: It’s a long question. And your Honour can see what it is, is that
material wasn’t seized. It was handed over. The warrant was wider than what you
asked for, wider than the production order. There’s nothing wrong with that. So if
you hadn’t asked for it, I think if you said a reasonable expectation would have been

given, why not just ask for it; the cost of one email. And then there’s a shot about
the fanlty word processor. There’s complaint of all the people coming:
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Now, 1 apologise you're in this terrible position of having to explain. But you
started off saying it’s not criminal. It was akin to civil. So why not just do the
normal thing under the civil which is to say, “Okay. Well, can you give us
this”. All you got was an unsigned draft that was your extra material.

Could I just pause there and say this is the extra material presumably under the
warrant. I don’t know this. The AFP doesn’t know this because they haven’t been
able to access it, yet:

All you got was an unsigned draft that was your extra material. But you didn’t
ask —

and this is about a reference to the production order:
...you didn’t ask for unsigned drafts. You only asked for agreements.

That’s quite right. If your Honour goes right back — I won’t take you to it now — but
the production order itself spoke of agreements. And a good lawyer had read it and
said, “Well, that doesn’t capture drafts of agreements”. Well, that’s the nature of the
production, and that’s the nature of argy bargy in this kind of litigation. It’s also the
case that a search warrant which is a completely separate process does separate
things and it acquires information which could be helpful including a draft.

Now, your Honour, in that respect, could I just take you briefly to — Ms Chrysanthou
put many submissions around the so-called Mercedes Corby exclusive agreement.
And 1 was going to take your Honour — it appears about three or four times in the
bundie — but to the place where it appears at page 90 of the bundle. There’s a reason
why I'm picking that one. It’s because of submissions made by Ms Chrysanthou —
you will see that this is the copy of the Mercedes Corby exclusive agreement. At
page 91 it’s signed by Mr Kalantzis as solicitor and Agent for Mercedes Corby.

Some submission have been put about whether or not this could properly provide a
basis for seeking the warrant. It’s been criticised and said that it can’t provide a
basis. With respect, that’s not the question for your Honour. The question for your
Honour is whether or not Magistrate Curran and, then, in due course, Magistrate
O’Brien issued the warrants in a way that they shouldn’t be vitiated. But so far as
there is a reference to this document, we would respectfully submit it well and truly
supports that which needed support, that is, the holding of a suspicion. If your
Honour looks at page 90 the fourth paragraph of the letter is in those terms:

Of course, I understand that you’ve discussed our meeting and expect that you
will discuss the contents of this letter with Schapelle and your lawyers. Other
than that it’s to be kept confidential.

And then, further, there’s the reference to the exclusive interviews and stories. And
this is the point:

.NSD201/2014 7.3.14 P-80
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5.2 Seven’'s Witnesses

5.2.1 Mr Stokes -]US.tlceofthe ..........................
[385] It is one thing for Mr Stokes to have been prepared to pursue this Iifi'gation
notwithstanding the enormous outlay of costs incurred by Seven (in which he has a
substantial interest). It is quite another for him to have been willing to give evidence.

[38€] In retrospect, it may have been possible for Seven to conduct this litigation
without Mr Stokes going into the witness box. In his final oral submissions, Mr Sumption
was at pains to contend that issues of credit, so far as Seven’s witnesses are concerned,
go primarily to causation and damages, rather than liability. No doubt this submission
recognises the difficuities in the path of accepting some of the evidence given by Seven’s
witnesses. But it also reflects the fact that Seven perhaps might have run its case
without Mr Stokes subjecting himself to cross-examination. In the absence of Mr Stokes,
Seven might have been foreclosed from persisting with its more extravagant claims for
relief, but for the most part these have been effectively abandoned in any event.

[387] Mr Stokes’ willingness to give evidence is somewhat perplexing. Not only must he
have known that he would face a gruelling cross-examination, but it must have been
apparent to him well before he stepped into the witness box, that his account of events
was likely to prove vulnerable at many points. As became clear in the course of cross-
examination, his evidence was repeatedly at odds with the contents of the
contemporaneous documentation. Time after time, Mr Stokes asserted that important
discussions had taken place at board meetings or elsewhere, when the relevant minutes
or other contemporaneous records contained no reference to them. He also maintained
that he had been unaware of matters that, according to the records, had been discussed
in his presence. This judgment is replete with examples.

[388] Mr Stokes is plainly a highly intelligent, shrewd and determined person. These
attributes, and others, have undoubtedly contributed to his very considerable business
success. It would be surprising if a person of Mr Stokes’ intelligence and shrewdness did
not appreciate the difficulties in the path of accepting much of his evidence, insofar as it
was a matter of dispute. It would be particularly surprising, given that Seven had access
to and availed itself of legal advice at every stage of the litigation (and indeed on many
occasions beforehand). This is not a dispute (or series of disputes) in which expense has
been spared. Mr Stokes’ legal advisers would have had every opportunity to draw his
attention, in an appropriate way, to the apparent disparities between his version of
events and the contemporaneous documentation.

[389] In assessing Mr Stokes’ evidence I have taken into account a number of factors in

his favour. They include the following:

« Mr Stokes was willing to give evidence in the face of the matters to which I have
referred and to confront what was bound to be (and was) a searching cross-
examination;

* no witness could be expected to recail accurately all relevant events that occurred six
or seven years before the trial;

» some of the attacks on Mr Stokes ultimately went nowhere (such as the suggestion
that certain documents were deliberately backdated);

o Mr Stokes clearly regards himself as a strategist and innovative thinker, whose role,
even as CEO of Seven, was not to descend to the detail even of apparently important
transactions;

» Mr Stokes' strengths (and interests) do not fie in the meticulous completion or
scrutiny of paperwork (a trait that tends to be much more highly prized by lawyers
than by business people); and

+ Mr Stokes was required to endure a very long and challenging cross-examination and,
perfectly understandably, was affected by weariness from time to time.

[390] I should also record that there were occasions on which Mr Stokes made
concessions in a reasonably straightforward manner. An example of what I regard as an
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important concession was his agreement that the successful offer Foxtel made for the
AFL pay television rights (through the Foxtel Put) was ‘a good price’ (for Foxtel).

[391] Even taking these matters into account, however, there were simply too many
occasions on which Mr Stokes’ evidence was implausible for me to regard him as a
reliable witness on disputed issues. Sometimes it is extremely difficult or impossible to
reconcile his version of events with the contemporaneous records, the reliability of which
there Is no good reason to doubt. Sometimes Mr Stokes’ evidence flies in the face of
incontrovertible facts. Sometimes, he changed his evidence when confronted with
material that made it virtvally impossible to maintain the position he had previously
adopted. Sometimes Mr Stokes’ evidence conflicted with that of other witnesses
(including, on occasions, witnesses called by Seven) whose accounts are, in my view,
reliable,

[392] So far as contemporaneous records are concerned, there may be, as Mr Sumption
submits, a difference between an apparently reliable record that omits reference to a
discussion or event that a witness says took place, and a similar record that includes
reference to a discussion or event that the witness denies occurred. However, Seven
adduced no evidence to counter the inference that the minutes of board and committee
meetings within Seven were intended to be reasonably reliable records of the meetings
prepared by competent people. In any event, it is often difficult to think of a plausible
reason why the contemporaneous records would have omitted reference to a particular
discussion or event that Mr Stokes sald took place, if indeed it did. Further, Mr Stokes on
a number of occasions denied knowledge of important information, such as the state of
C7’s negotiations with Austar, that the contemporaneous documentation overwheimingly
suggests was drawn to his attention.

[393] A trial judge in civil proceedings should exercise caution before pronouncing that
a witness has given deliberately false evidence. Often it is necessary only to determine
whether the witness’ evidence, insofar as it is relevant to the issues, should be accepted
in whole, in part or not at all, It may not matter very much, for the purposes of deciding
the litigation, whether a witness found to be unreliable has told deliberate untruths or
has given unsatisfactory evidence for other reasons.

[394] However, In this case a sustained and vigorous attack was mounted against Mr
Stokes’ credit, including his honesty as a witness. I think it appropriate to observe that,
although some of the particular attacks on Mr Stokes’ credit lacked cogency, there were
occasions on which, in my opinion, he gave evidence that he knew was not true. One
example was a particularly unconvincing denial that he did not share the objective of
others within Seven of ‘ramping’ the price that News (through Fox Sports) wouid
ultimately have to pay for the NRL pay television rights by outbidding Seven. Mr Stokes
participated in a conference at which the objective was discussed and, on his own
admission, said nothing to dissociate himself from the views expressed there. Mr
Gammell gave evidence that everyone at the meeting agreed with the ramping
objective. Internal Seven documentation makes it clear that ramping was, at the very
least, a critical (if not the only) objective underlying the bidding by Seven for the NRL
pay television rights. Mr Stokes’ evidence on this issue was not only implausible but, 1
must conclude, deliberately false.

[395] Similarly, I must conclude that Mr Stokes’ professed ignorance about the state of
negotiations between Seven and Austar could not have been a mere failure of memory.
This evidence went to the damages sought by Seven and Mr Stokes understood its
Importance. Mr Stokes repeatedly denied that matters came to his attention over a
substantial period of time, notwithstanding much documentary evidence to the contrary.
The inaccuracy of Mr Stokes’ evidence on this point, in my view, was not the product of
inadvertence.

[396] Having said that, it is also appropriate to record my view that the unreliability of
Mr Stokes’ evidence was, in part, a product of his reconstruction of events through the
prism of self-interest, layered with more than a littie wishful thinking. Mr Stokes’
evidence demonstrates that he was extremely resolute and persistent in pursuit of his
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and Seven's business objectives, sometimes to the point of obstinacy. His relentless

attempts to enlist the ACCC as an ally in Seven’s battles with its opponents are examples

of both persistence and, to a marked degree, apparent over-optimism.

[397] Mr Stokes demonstrated a tendency both in his actions and evidence to see the
commercial world, particularly the propriety of his competitors’ conduct, in rather black
and white terms. (This trait has not proved an insuperable obstacle to Seven Itself
switching allegiances, as shown by its alliance with Ten in bidding for the AFL
broadcasting rights in 2005.) A rather Manichaean view of the commercial world may or
may not explain Mr Stokes’ propensity to engage in litigation (a propensity of which the
Respondents sought to make much, although it hardly seems to be unique in the
television industry). But it may help to explain how he could believe that particular
discussions or events occurred, or that certain beliefs were expressed or opinions held,
when the objective evidence strongly suggests otherwise. A firm grasp of the facts, in
the lawyer's sense, is evidently not a prerequisite to business success.

[398] In summary, I cannot accept Mr Stokes as a reliable witness on matters that are
in dispute, especially where there is contemporaneous documentation or cogent oral
evidence that conflicts with his account.

Page 3 of 3
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District Court of New Scuth Wales

At Sydney
Civil Jurisdiction

Matter no. 2013/204852

Richard Edward PALMER Plaintiff / Applicant

.v..

Raymond Morris HADLEY Defendant/Respondant
JUDGMENT:

1. By Notice of Motion filed 24 October 2013, Mr Richard Paimer (the Plaintiff)
seeks an order pursuant to s 68 of the Civil Procedurs Act (2005) that Mr
Raymond Hadley (the Defendant) be examined as to the adequacy of his
answers to a subpoena to produce dated 21 August 2013.

2. On 5 September 2013, the Defendant produced documents pursuant fo a
subpoena, in his name (the Hadley subpoena). That subpoena ordered the
Defendant to produce inter alia:

=All documents including, but not limited to, all incident reports, emails,
statement, leiters, memoranda, diagrams and all other documents,
created during February and March 2013, referring or relating to the
exchange pleaded in paragraphs 9-11 of the Statement of Claim fiied in
the District Court on 5 July 2013.”

3. In response fo that subpoena four (4) amails were produced and they are
attached to the affidavit of Mr John Laxon [Exhibit A, paragraph 6].

4. On 1 November 2013, a subpoena was issued to Macquarie Radio Network
Limited (the MRN subpoena), to whom the Plaintiff is contracted, ordering MRN
to produce inter alia:

“All documents including, but not limited in generality to, all incident
reports, emails, statements, letters, memoranda, suspension notices,
reinstatement notices, wamings, records of counselling and all other
documents, created between 7 February and 31 March 2013, referring

or relating to an alleged incident of bullying upcn Richard Palmer by
Raymond Hadley by the use of allegedly intimidating and
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unprofessional words and gestures that occurred in Mr Hadley's office
located at Level 1, Building C, 33-35 Saunders Street, Pyrmont on the
morning of 7 February 20130,

5. The Plaintiff's solicitors had complained to the Defendant’s solicitors about the
inadequacy of the response to the Hadley subpoena. The MRN subpoena is
more specific and wider than the Hadley subpoena and nine (8) documents were
produced In response to it which had not been produced as a result of the
Hadley subpoena.

8. On or about 18 November 2013, Mr Michael Thompson, Exscutive Producer of
the Defendant’s radio program, and a Ms Baird, the Defendant's assistant,
began a second search for documents of the Defendant on the Defendant's
email account which is supplied and maintained by MRN [Exhibit 1 paragraph
18].

7. In the previous search (for the Hadley subpoena) which had used key words o
locate amails, on this occasion, every email sent and received with this emalil
account was searched. The solicitor for the Defendant, Ms Justine Munsle, in her
affidavit [Exhibit 1, paragraphs 10-11] states:

“l am informad by Mr Hadley that:

a. he uses an email account supplied and maintained by Macquarie
Radio Network to send and receive emails. His email address is
ray@2ab.com;

b. he receives many emails, sometimes hundreds, in one day. Of these
ematls, Mr Hadley will delete some and leave the others in his inbox
or sent items folder to ba filed in his emasil account by Mr Thompson
and Ms Sophie Baird, Mr Hadley's assistant, each of whom have
access to the account;

¢. four members of his staff have access to his emails and may read his
emall at any time. For this reason, Mr Hadley has a practice of
deleting emails which he regards as highly parsonal as soon as they
are read by him.

1 am informed by Mr Thompson that for the months of Fabruary and
March there are approximately 6,000 emails presently able to be
accessed in Mr Hadley's email account. Any items sent or received by Mr
Hadley which are deleted are automatically cleared from Mr Hadley's
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email account on a regular basis, which Mr Thompson estimates is
almost daily. Once emails are delsted, they ars no longer accessible by
Mr Hadley or by his staff, but might be accessible by Macquarie Radio
Network. As a result, at that time of receipt of the Hadiey subpoena, there
were no emails from the February or March period which Mr Hadley had
deleted and which remained accessible by him.”

8. This second ssarch located twelve (12) additional email documents which are
set out in paragraph 18 of Exhibit 1 as follows:

“ Of the 12 emails comprising the Additional Hadley documents:

a. There are eight emails which comprise corrsgpondence
between Mr Hadley and his listeners and which refer to
media reports of the exchange described in paragraph 2 of
the Hadiey subpoena. These amails were not produced in
response to the MRN subpoena.

b. There is one email dated 6 March 2013 sent by one of Mr
Hadley's staff attaching a link fo a website article which
refers to the exchange described in paragraph 2 of the
Hadley subpoena. This email was not produced in response
to the MRN subpoena.

c. There is one email exchange dated 7 Fabruary 2013
between the plaintif and Mr Hadley, the first part of which
had previously been produced by Mr Hadley on 5
September 2013. this was produced in response to the MRN
subpoena as set out in paragraph 14 below.

d. There is one email exchange dated 13 February 2013
between Mr Hadley and Russeil Tate of Macquarie Radio
Natwork. This was produced in response {o the MRN
subpoena as set out in paragraph 14 below.

e. There is one email exchange dated 15 February 2013
petween Mr Hadley and Mr Loewenthal of Macquarie Radio
Network. This was produced in response to the MRN
subpoena as set out in paragraph 14 below.

8. The second search had uncovered and produced to the Court nine (9) emalil
documents not previously produced by either the Hadley subpoena or the MRN
subpoena and 3 documents that had elready been produced by the MRN
subpoena.

10.As io the 5 email documents produced by MRN that were not produced by the
Defendant, which are annexed to the affidavit of Mr Laxon [Exhibit A], the

Defendant submits that these were either outside the terms of the subpoena, or
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not located, or an email sent to the Defendant’s home address, or an MRN
Board minute record not in the Defendant's possession.

11.The fact that the Plaintiff has been put to the trouble of issuing a second
subpoena and forcing the Defendant to camy out further searches, as { have
outlined earlier, raised what could best be described as a suspicion in the mind
of the Plainitff that there are further documents to be produced. Further, adding
to the Plaintiffs suspicion is the question why didn't the Defendant carry out
personal searches of himself but rather rely upon Mr Thompson, his wife and Mr
Balrd?

12.1t was the submission of Mr McCarthy for the Plaintiff that there was a clear
inference to be drawn that further documents, relevant to the case, were being
withheld.

13.Mr McCarthy submitted that in these clrcumstances the Defendant should be
summoned to appear and examined fo explain why he did not produce all the
documents under his power and control in answer to the subpoana of 21 August
2013.

The Law

14.Mr Richardson for the Defendant submittad that UCPR 33.6 mandates
compliance with a subpoena. UCPR 33.12 provides that a failure to comply with
a subpoena without lawful excuse amounts to a contempt of couri. Section 88 of
the Civil Procedure Act (2005) grants a power {0 the court to compel persons to
be examined as a witness. The decision as to whether an examination is
appropriate is one for judicial discretion. The test has been phrased in terms of a
party establishing “some basis for supposing that the [subpoenaad parfy] may
not fully understand the obligation imposad by the subpoena” or estabilshing a



sufficient basis “for it to be said that the plaintiff has & reasonable cause for
wishing to test the sufficiency of the... compliance with the subpoena.” Quach v
Vu (2009) NSWSC 131 at [5].

15.The Defendant's solicitor, Ms Munsie said in evidence that her client, the
Defendant, was “not very good with emails’, a very broad explanation. Ms
Munsie did have a meeting with her client and aiso Mr Thompson. She said at
paragraph 20 of her affidavit:

«On the basis of my conversations with Mr Hadley and his staff as
described above, | am satisfied that Mr Hadley has been property
advised and has understood his obligations regarding compliance with
the Hadley subpoena. | am aiso satisfied that any documents in Mr
Hadley's possession, custody or control have been produced in
responss to the Hadley subpoena.”

16.1 had occasion to view and listen 1o Ms Munsie in cross examination by Mr
McCarthy both as to her evidence and demeanour and found her as an officer of
the court and a witness to be a persan of veracity and 1 accept her avidence In
the witness box and as set out in paragraph 20 of her affidavit.

17.1n these circumstances, | do not intend to drawn the inference that there are
further documents to be produced and | do not make the order sought in the
Plaintiffs motion. | note order 1 is not relied upon. As the Defandant’s tardinese
in producing the documents sought by the Pialntiff has led to this motion, | order

the defendant to pay the costs of the motion, inciuding a fee for counsel.

| certify that this end the preceding 5
pages are a true and comect copy of the
Reasons for Judgment of his Honour
Judge RA Sorby, dated this 5 December
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